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MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL AT MUMBAI BENCH
Company Scheme Application No. 351 of 2017
In the matter of Companies Act, 2013;
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with section 52
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
as amended and including any statutory modifications(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof and corresponding provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent as may be applicable;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra
Two Wheelers Limited having CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462
(‘Demerged Company’) and Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
having CIN: L65990MH1945PLC004558 ('Resulting Company’)
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

(CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462)

A Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered ) .... Applicant Company
Office at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

FORM NO. CAA 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7]
Company Scheme Application No. 351 of 2017
Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited ... Applicant Company

NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 230 READ WITH 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 [INCLUDING ANY STATUTORY MODIFICATION(S) OR RE-ENACTMENT(S)
THEREOF FROM TIME TO TIME]

To,
The Equity Shareholders of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

Notice is hereby given that by an Order dated the 5% day of April, 2017, the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law
Tribunal (‘NCLT’ or ‘Tribunal’) has directed a meeting to be held of Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Meeting’) for the purpose of considering, and, if thought fit, approving, with or without modification, the
arrangement proposed and embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement proposed to be made between the said Applicant Company
and Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (‘Resulting Company’ or ‘M&M’) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (‘Scheme’).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein further notice is hereby given that a meeting of Equity Shareholders
of the said Applicant Company will be held at Ground Floor, Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001 on Tuesday,
13" June, 2017 at 9 a.m. at which time and place the said Equity Shareholders are requested to attend to consider, and, if thought
fit, to approve, with or without modification(s) the following Resolutions with requisite majority:

1. "RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and section 52 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force), provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as may be applicable, the National Company Law Tribunal Rules,
2016, section 2(19AA) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Clause 14 of the Objects Clause
of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (‘'NCLT’ or ‘Tribunal’) and approvals of such other statutory/Government authority(ies), as may be necessary
or as may be directed by the NCLT or such other competent authority(ies), as the case may be, approval of the Company
be accorded to the demerger of the Two Wheelers Business, inter alia, consisting of entire undertaking, business, activities
and operations pertaining to the Two Wheelers Business (‘Two Wheelers Undertaking’ or ‘Demerged Undertaking”) of
the Company ("MTWL' or ‘Demerged Company’), a subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (‘M&M’ or ‘the Resulting
Company’), having its Registered Office situated at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 and
its transfer as a going concern to the Resulting Company with effect from 15t October, 2016, or such other date as may be
directed or approved by the Tribunal (‘the Appointed Date’), as per the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company
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and the Resulting Company and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (‘the Scheme’), placed before this meeting and
initialled by the Chairman of the Meeting for the purpose of identification.

FURTHER RESOLVED that approval of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (including any
Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate
or necessary to implement the Scheme and to accept such modification(s), amendment(s), limitation(s) and/or condition(s),
if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other authority(ies) or as may be required for the
purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise for giving effect to the Scheme.”

The following resolution is proposed to be passed, with or without modification(s), as Special Resolution:

2. "RESOLVED that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as may be applicable, National
Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 and subject to sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 read with sections
66 and 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Scheme’) by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’ or
‘Tribunal’) and subject to the same becoming effective and further subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by
the NCLT while granting such approvals and consents, and approval of such other statutory/Government authority(ies),
as may be necessary or as may be directed by the NCLT or such other competent authority(ies), as the case may be, as an
integral part of the Scheme approval of the Company be accorded for re-organisation of securities premium and share
capital of the Company by adjusting the aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as on close of business hours on
30" September, 2016 and additional debit balance in Profit and Loss Account pursuant to clause 10.2 of the Scheme
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “MTWL Aggregate Book Losses”, as provided under clause 6.1 of the Scheme), against:

(i) the securities premium account as on close of business hours on 30* September 2016 aggregating to Rs. 7,41,72,890
(Rupees Seven Crore Forty One Lakh Seventy Two Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety Only); and

(i) Balance against the re-organisation of issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company by
reducing face value and paid up value of equity share capital of Rs. 10 each to Re 0.02 each, effected by an amount of
Rs. 2992,39,24,376 (Rupees Two Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Two Crore Thirty Nine Lakh Twenty Four Thousand
Three Hundred and Seventy Six Only);

and consequently, the Company is not required to add words “And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

FURTHER RESOLVED that approval of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (including any
Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate
or necessary to implement the Scheme and to accept such modification(s), amendment(s), limitation(s) and/or condition(s),
if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other authority(ies) or as may be required for the
purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise for giving effect to the Scheme.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may vote in person or by proxy, provided that
all proxies in the prescribed form, duly signed or authorized by the said person, are deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that form of proxy is also annexed to this Notice and can be obtained from the Registered Office of
the Company or from the office of its Advocates, M/s Hemant Sethi & Co., 1602 Nav Parmanu, Behind Amar Cinema, Chembur,
Mumbai - 400 071.

The Tribunal has appointed, Dr. Pawan Goenka, Director, and in his absence, Mr. V. S. Parthasarathy, Director, and in his absence,
Mr. Rajesh Jejurikar, Director as Chairman of this meeting. The above mentioned Scheme, if approved at the Meeting, will be
subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

This Notice convening the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company along with aforesaid documents are
placed on the website of the Company viz. http://www.mahindratwowheelers.com.

Copies of the Scheme and the Explanatory Statement are annexed to this Notice and can be obtained free of charge from the
Registered Office of the Company or at the office of its Advocates, M/s Hemant Sethi & Co., 1602 Nav Parmanu, Behind Amar
Cinema, Chembur, Mumbai - 400 071.

PAWAN GOENKA
DIN : 00254502
Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Dated this 10t day of May, 2017

Registered Office:

Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018
CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462

Email: bade.kiran@mahindra.com

Website: www.mahindratwowheelers.com
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A route map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of the Meeting is given below:

ROUTE MAP
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NOTES:

1.

10.

1.

12.

AN EQUITY SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH A PROXY/PROXIES SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE AN
EQUITY SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY. THE FORM OF PROXY DULY COMPLETED SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE APPLICANT COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE
AFORESAID MEETING.

As per Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Equity
Shareholders not exceeding 50 and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Applicant
Company carrying voting rights. Further, Equity Shareholders holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Applicant Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialled.
A form of proxy is enclosed to this Notice. No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless:

(i) itis signed by the Equity Shareholder or by his/her attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of joint holders,
it is signed by the Equity Shareholder first named in the Register of Members or his/her attorney duly authorised in
writing or, in the case of body corporate, it is executed under its common seal, if any, or signed by its attorney duly
authorised in writing; provided that an instrument of proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any Equity Shareholder, who
for any reason is unable to write, if his/her thumb impression is affixed thereto, and attested by a judge, magistrate,
registrar or sub-registrar of assurances or other government gazetted officers or any officer of a Nationalised Bank.

(ii) it is duly filled, stamped, signed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the time fixed for the meeting, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed
or a copy of that power of attorney certified by a notary public or a magistrate unless such a power of attorney or the
other authority is previously deposited and registered with the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

The Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company whose names are appearing in the records of the Company as on the
cut-off date i.e. Friday, 9% June, 2017 shall be eligible to attend and vote at the meeting of the equity shareholders of
the Company. This notice of the Meeting along with aforesaid documents are placed on the website of the Company viz.
http://www.mahindratwowheelers.com.

The Applicant Company is pleased to offer voting through polling at the venue of the meeting to its equity shareholders
holding equity shares as on 9 June, 2017, being the cut-off date, to exercise their right to vote on the above resolution.
Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of equity shares registered in the name of Members as on 9t" June, 2017,
i.e. the cut-off date. Persons who are not equity shareholders of the Applicant Company as on the cut-off date should treat
this notice for information purposes only.

Only registered Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company may attend and vote (either in person or by proxy) at the
Meeting.

The authorized representative of a body corporate or Foreign Institutional Investor (‘FII'), which is a registered Equity
Shareholder of the Applicant Company may attend and vote at the Meeting, provided a certified true copy of the Resolution
of the Board of Directors or other governing body of such body corporate/Fll authorizing such a representative to attend
and vote at the Meeting is deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company not later than 48 hours before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting.

Registered Equity Shareholders are requested to bring their Folio No./Client ID and DP ID for easy identification of the
attendance at the Meeting.

Registered Equity Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, joint holder whose name
stands first in the Register of Members and in his/her absence by the next named Equity Shareholder of the Applicant
Company in respect of such joint holding will be entitled to vote.

A registered Equity Shareholder or his proxy is requested to bring a copy of the Notice to the Meeting and produce it at the
entrance of the Meeting venue, along with the attendance slip duly completed and signed.

During the period beginning 24 (twenty four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the Meeting, the Equity Shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time
during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than 3 (three) days of notice in writing is given to the
Company addressed to the Company Secretary.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Sachin Bhagwat, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI Membership No. ACS 10189) as Scrutinizer
to scrutinize votes cast at the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. The Results declared alongwith the report of the
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company viz. www.mahindratwowheelers.com within 48 hours of the
Meeting by the Chairman.
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13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

The Tribunal has directed that the quorum for the Meeting shall be as per section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The material documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the Equity
Shareholders, from 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on any working day (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) upto one day
prior to the date of the Meeting at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company.

The Notice convening the aforesaid meeting will be published through advertisement in the following newspapers namely
(i) Business Standard in the English language and (ii) Sakal in the Marathi language, in the State where the Registered Office
of the Applicant Company is situated.

Pursuant to directions of the Tribunal and Rule 6(2) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements, Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 framed thereunder, the Notice of the Meeting would be sent by electronic mode to those Equity Shareholders whose
e-mail addresses are registered with the Depository, unless the Equity Shareholders have requested for a physical copy of the
same. For Equity Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies would be sent by the permitted
mode.

Equity Shareholders/Proxies/Representatives are requested to bring the Attendance Slip enclosed herein for attending the
Meeting.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL AT MUMBAI BENCH
Company Scheme Application No. 351 of 2017

In the matter of Companies Act, 2013;
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with section 52
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
as amended and including any statutory modifications(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof and corresponding provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent as may be applicable;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra
Two Wheelers Limited having CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462
(‘Demerged Company’) and Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
having CIN: L65990MH1945PLC004558 (‘Resulting Company’)
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

(CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462)

A Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered ) .... Applicant Company
Office at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS

LIMITED UNDER SECTIONS 102 AND 230 READ WITH SECTION 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES

(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1.

Pursuant to the Order dated 5% April 2017 passed by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal, in the
Company Application referred to hereinabove, Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company, is being
convened at Ground Floor, Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001 on Tuesday, 13" June, 2017 at 9 a.m. and
held for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the proposed Scheme
of Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (‘Demerged Company’ or "Applicant Company’ or ‘'MTWL') and
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (‘Resulting Company’ or ‘'M&M’) and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’)
under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) or
amendment thereof) read with the rules issued thereunder and provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as may be applicable.

A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the arrangement, which has been approved by the
Board of Directors of the Applicant Company at its meeting held on 3 December, 2016 is attached to this explanatory
statement and forms part of this statement as ANNEXURE A.
Background of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited is as under:

i. Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (referred to as ‘Demerged Company’), a public limited company having
CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462, was incorporated on 5" August, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956 under the name
and style of ‘Mahindra Two Wheelers Private Limited’. Its name was changed to the present ‘Mahindra Two Wheelers
Limited’ with effect from 1t December, 2008.

ii. The Registered Office of the Applicant Company is situated at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.

iii. The Share Capital of the Applicant Company, as on 31t March, 2016 was as under:

Particulars Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:

350,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 3500,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital:

265,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2658,38,92,160

Subsequent to 31t March, 2016, the Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital of the Applicant Company has
undergone a change and position as on 31t December, 2016 is as under:

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital: Rs.
299,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2998,38,92,160

Of the above, Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Resulting Company,
holds 276,60,97,350 Equity Shares of the Applicant Company.
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The main object of Applicant Company is set out in the Memorandum of Association are as under:

“To design, develop, manufacture, assemble, test, produce, buy, sell, distribute, trade, import, export, alter, remodel,
hire, exchange, repair, service, deal in two wheeled vehicles and any other vehicles of every kind and description, in
India and elsewhere, whether propelled by using gas, petroleum, diesel oil, steam, oil, vapor, electricity or any other
form of energy or power.

To design, develop, manufacture, assemble, test, produce, buy, sell, distribute, trade, import, export, alter, remodel,
upgrade, renovate, invent, hire, exchange, repair, service, deal in all types of parts and raw materials of every kind and
description required for or capable of being used for or in connection with the object described above, including but not
limited to engines, gears, transmission, axles, joints, springs, lamps, chains, bodies, frames, chassis, tires, tubes, batteries,
goods, instruments, appliances, apparatus, equipment, components, spare parts, tools and products for the transport or
conveyance of passengers.”

The Applicant Company is engaged in the businesses of manufacturing and selling of two wheelers ('Two Wheelers
Business’) and trading in spare parts and accessories ("MTWL Spares Business’).

Background of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited is as under:

The Resulting Company was incorporated under the name and style of ‘Mahindra and Mohammed Limited’ on
2" October, 1945 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act, VIl of 1913 vide Registration Number 4558
(CIN: L65990MH1945PLC004558). It's name was changed from Mahindra and Mohammed Limited to Mahindra and
Mahindra Limited with effect from 13t January, 1948.

The Registered Office of the Resulting Company is situated at Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001.

The details of the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31t March,
2016, are as under:

Particulars Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:

120,00,00,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each and 25,00,000 Unclassified Shares of

Rs. 100 each 625,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital:

62,10,92,384 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid-up 310,54,61,920
Less : 2,84,58,577 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid-up issued to ESOP Trust but

not allotted to employees 14,22,92,885
Adjusted : Issued and Subscribed Share Capital of 59,26,33,807 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of

Rs. 5 each fully paid-up 296,31,69,035

The Equity Shares of the Resulting Company are, at present, listed on the BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. There has been no change in the capital structure of the Resulting Company subsequent to
315t March, 2016, except for the transfer of shares from the ESOP Trust to employees upon exercise of options.

The main objects of the Resulting Company are set out in the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company.
The main objects inter alia are as under:

“(i) To buy, sell, import, export, manufacture, treat, prepare and deal in merchandise, commodities, machinery, tools,
goods and articles of all kinds and generally to carry on the business as merchants, contractors, importers and
exporters.

(i) To carry on the business of iron founders, mechanical engineers and manufacturers of agricultural implements
and other machinery, tool-makers, brass-founders, iron masters, metal-workers, boiler-makers, millwrights,
machinists, iron and steel converters, smiths, coke manufacturers, wood-workers, builders, painters, metallurgists,
electrical engineers, water supply engineers, gas-makers, smelters, iron plate makers, farmers, printers, carriers and
merchants, and to buy, sell, manufacture, repair, convert, alter, let on hire, and deal in machinery, implements,
rolling stock and hardware of all kinds, and to carry on any other business (manufacturing or otherwise) which
may seem to the Company capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with the above, or otherwise
calculated, directly or indirectly, to enhance the value of any of the Company’s property and rights for the time
being.

(iii) To carry on any business relating to the winning and working of minerals, the production and working of metals,
and the production, manufacture, and preparation of any other materials which may be usefully or conveniently
combined with the engineering or manufacturing business of the Company, or any contracts undertaken by the
Company, and either for the purpose only of such contracts or as an independent business..............."
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V.

The Resulting Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of tractors, general-purpose utility vehicles,
light commercial vehicles, three-wheelers and trucks and buses.

Relationship between the companies, Description, Rationale, Salient Features & Benefits of the Scheme

a)

b)

9]

d)

Relationship between the companies:

The Applicant Company is a step-down subsidiary of the Resulting Company ie the Applicant Company is a subsidiary of
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited ("MVML') which is in turn a wholly owned subsidiary of the Resulting Company.
Presently, MVML holds 92.25% of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Demerged Company.

Description of the Scheme:

The Scheme of Arrangement provides for transfer and vesting of the Two Wheelers Undertaking of the Applicant
Company along with all the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest, licenses, liabilities and authorities including
accretions and appurtenances of the Applicant Company pertaining to the Two Wheelers Undertaking (also referred to
as the ‘Demerged Undertaking’), to the Resulting Company.

Rationale for Demerger:
The demerger of the Two Wheelers Undertaking of the Applicant Company with the Resulting Company would inter
alia have the following benefits:

i.  The Resulting Company is present in many segments of the automotive industry e.g. Passenger & Utility Vehicles
and Commercial Vehicles including Three Wheelers and Trucks & Buses.

ii. The proposed demerger, in line with the strategy of focusing on niche premium Two Wheeler segment, would
enable the Two Wheeler Undertaking to benefit from the Resulting Company’s Design & Development and Sourcing
capabilities.

iii. The proposed demerger would also enable the Demerged Company enhance focus on the spares business.

iv. The proposed demerger would also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company achieve and fulfil
their objectives more efficiently and in cost effective manner.

Salient features of the Scheme:

i.  This Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (‘Applicant Company’ or ‘Demerged
Company’) with Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (‘Resulting Company’) and their respective shareholders and
creditors is presented under Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with notified section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
1956/2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof).

ii. 'Appointed Date’ for the Scheme is October 1, 2016 or such other date as may be directed or approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal constituted under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘NCLT’) or any other competent
Authority, as the case may be.

iii. ‘Effective Date’ or ‘coming into effect of this Scheme’ or ‘upon the Scheme becoming effective’ means the last of
the dates, if applicable, on which the certified or authenticated copy(ies) of the order(s) sanctioning the Scheme
passed by the National Company Law Tribunal constituted under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'NCLT’) or any other
Appropriate Authority, as may be applicable, is/are filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

iv. Upon the Scheme becoming operative and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Demerged Undertaking
(including all the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and appurtenances
of the Demerged Undertaking) shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company as a going concern without any further act, deed, matter or thing.

v.  The Scheme duly approved or imposed or directed by the NCLT, shall be effective from the Appointed Date but
shall be operative from the Effective Date. Therefore, for all requlatory and tax purposes, the Demerger would be
effective from the Appointed Date of the Scheme. Notwithstanding the above, the accounting treatment to be
adopted to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme would be in consonance with Indian Accounting Standards 103
("Ind AS 103”) and the mere adoption of such accounting treatment will not in any manner affect the vesting of
the demerged undertaking from the Appointed Date.

vi. Upon the Scheme becoming operative and with effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Demerged Undertaking shall also,
without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company, so
as to become from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Resulting Company.
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e)

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

As an integral part of the Scheme, MTWL also proposes to re-organise its Share Capital and Securities Premium
Account by writing off i) the aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account on the close of business hours on
30t September, 2016 and ii) the excess, if any, of assets over liabilities transferred from MTWL under the Scheme
and debited to the Reserves (Balance in Profit and Loss Account), against the Securities Premium Account as on
the close of business hours on 30t September, 2016 and Share Capital by reducing face value and paid up value of
equity shares of MTWL from Rs. 10 each to Re. 0.02 each.

Consequent upon the re-organisation, as mentioned above, the MTWL Aggregate Book Losses shall be reduced to
NIL and the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company will be revised as under.

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital: Rs.
299,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Rs. 0.02 each 5,99,67,784

Out of the above, 276,60,97,350 equity shares will be held by MVML.

The Scheme provides for re-classification of the Authorised Share Capital of MTWL and transfer of a portion of the
Authorised Share Capital from MTWL to the Resulting Company

The Scheme provides for issue of Equity Shares by the Resulting Company to the Shareholders of the Demerged
Company (other than Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of Resulting Company) as on the Record Date.

The Resulting Company shall issue and allot to the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company (other than the
Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of Resulting Company) 1 (One) Ordinary (Equity) Share of Rs. 5 each fully
paid-up of the Resulting Company for every 461 (Four Hundred Sixty One) Equity Shares fully paid-up held by them
in the Demerged Company as on the record date. Fractional entitlements shall be rounded-off to the next higher
whole number.

In case the Scheme is not approved by the NCLT or any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme
have not been obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, if this Scheme cannot be implemented, then
the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall mutually waive such conditions
as they consider appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement,
the Scheme shall become null and void and in such event no rights or liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be
incurred by either the Resulting Company or the Demerged Company and each party shall bear their respective
costs, charges and expenses in connection with this Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

The costs, charges, expenses, taxes including duties, levies in connection with the Scheme and its implementation
thereof, and matters incidental thereto, would be borne by the Resulting Company.

The Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

1. The Scheme being approved by Directorate of Industries under Part 1 of the 1993 Package Scheme of Incentives
as notified under Government of Maharashtra resolution.

2. The Scheme being agreed to/approved by the respective requisite majorities of the Members and/or Creditors
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company as required under the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies
Act, 2013 and the requisite order of the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal being obtained;

3. Receipt of such other sanctions and approvals including sanction of any Governmental authority (including
the Securities and Exchange Board of India) or Stock Exchanges as may be required by law in respect of the
Scheme being obtained; and

4. The authenticated/certified copies of the orders of the Tribunal referred to in this Scheme being filed with the
Registrar of Companies

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT, THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT TO GET THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF.

Benefits of the demerger to the Company as perceived by the Board of directors to the company, members, creditors
and others (as applicable):

With M&M being present in many segments of the automotive industry e.g. Passenger & Utility Vehicles and Commercial
Vehicles including Three Wheelers, Trucks & Buses, the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers Undertaking of MTWL,
envisaged in the Scheme in line with its strategy of focusing on niche premium Two Wheeler segment, would enable
the Demerged Undertaking to benefit from M&M'’s Design & Development and Sourcing capabilities. The proposed
demerger would also enable the Demerged Company to enhance focus on the spares business.
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6. Board Meeting and Valuation Report:

a) The Proposed Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company on 3 December, 2016,
wherein the Joint Valuation Report M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants and M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants on Recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio, was also placed before the Board.

b) The Audit Committee of the Applicant Company (‘Audit Committee’) vide a resolution passed on 3 December, 2016,
recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company inter alia taking into account;

i.  Draft Scheme;

ii. The Joint Valuation Report on Recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
and M/s. SSPA & Co., dated 3" December, 2016;

The Joint Valuation Report dated 3 December, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP and M/s. SSPA & Co.
and Fairness Opinion dated 3 December, 2016 issued by SBI Capital Markets Limited, SEBI Registered Merchant
Banker, addressed to Mahindra & Mahindra Limited are enclosed as ANNEXURE B-l1 and ANNEXURE B-Il, respectively,
to this Notice.

7. Application:

Each of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company had made separate applications before the Mumbai Bench of the
National Company Law Tribunal for the sanction of the Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 and Section 52 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the corresponding Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent
applicable. A copy of the Scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies Maharashtra, Mumbai.

8. Directors, Promoters and Key Managerial Personnel:

a) None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel ('KMPs')of Demerged Company and their respective relatives
(as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of
the equity shares held by them in Demerged Company and/or Resulting Company and/or to the extent that the said
Director(s), KMPs and their respective relatives are the directors, KMPs, members of the companies that hold shares in
the respective Companies.

b) Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors and KMPs of the Demerged/Applicant Company and the Resulting Company
and their relatives have any material concern or interest, financial and/or otherwise in the Scheme.

¢) The details of the present Directors and KMPs of Demerged/Applicant Company and the Resulting Company and their
respective shareholdings in Demerged/Applicant Company, and Resulting Company as on 315t March, 2017 are as follows:

Extent of shareholding of the Directors and KMPs of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (Demerged/Applicant Company) and their
respective holding in the Resulting Company, and Demerged Company are as follows:

Name of the Director

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant

Company
Dr. Pawan Goenka 0 1%
Mr. Rajesh Jejurikar 30,449 1*
Mr. V. S. Parthasarathy 31,889 1%
Mr. Ranjan Pant (ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 27t April, 2017) 0 0
Mr. Shirish Saraf 0 0
Dr. Punita Kumar Sinha 0 0
Mr. Naveen Kumar Kshatriya 0 0

* Jointly held with MVML (first holder)

Name of the KMP’s

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant

Company
Mr. Vinod Sahay 2,459 0
Mr. Mahendra Bhalerao 2,384 1*
Mr. Prem Rathi 0 0
Ms. Poonam Vaze 0 0

* Jointly held with MVML (first holder)
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Extent of shareholding of Directors and KMPs of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (Resulting Company) and their respective holding
in the Demerged/Applicant Company and the Resulting Company are as follows:

Name of the Director

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant

Company
Mr. Anand G. Mahindra 7,15,004 0
Dr. Pawan Goenka 0 1%
Mr. Deepak S. Parekh 1,12,180 0
Mr. Nadir B. Godrej 5,42,303 0
Mr. M. M. Murugappan 1,00,000 0
Mr. R. K. Kulkarni 83,088 0
Mr. Anupam Puri 0 0
Dr. Vishakha N. Desai 0 0
Mr. Vikram Singh Mehta 10,000 0
Mr. T. N. Manoharan 0 0
Mr. S. B. Mainak 0 0

* Jointly held with MVML (first holder)

Name of the KMP’s (other than Executive Directors)

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant
Company

Mr. V. S. Parthasarathy

31,889

1*

Mr. Narayan Shankar

2,906

1*

* Jointly held with MVML (first holder)

d) Extent of holding of Promoters in the Demerged Company and Resulting Company

Extent of shareholding as on 31t March, 2017 of the Promoters of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (Demerged/Applicant
Company) in the Demerged Company/Applicant Company and Resulting Company are as follows:

Name of the Promoters

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant
Company

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited

2,76,60,97,344

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Mr. Narayan Shankar

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Dr. Pawan Goenka

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Mr. K. Chandrasekar

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Mr. V. S. Parthasarathy

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Mr. Rajesh Jejurikar

o|lo|o|o|o|o

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd Jointly With Mr. Mahendra Bhalerao

0
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Extent of shareholding as on 31t March, 2017 of the Promoters of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (Resulting Company) in the
Demerged Company/Applicant Company and Resulting Company are as follows:

Name of the Promoters

No. of Equity Shares in
Resulting Company

No. of Equity Shares in
Demerged/Applicant

Company
Mr. Keshub Mahindra 4,42,296 0
Mr. Anand G. Mahindra 7,15,004 0
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e) The pre and post Scheme (expected) shareholding pattern of the Applicant Company/Demerged Company as on
31tMarch, 2017 is as under:
Pre Scheme & Post Scheme Equity Capital:
Shareholding as on Shareholding as on
31t March, 2017 31t March, 2017
Sr. (Pre Scheme) (Post Scheme)
Category of shareholders
No. No. of Shares % of total | No. of Shares % of total
of Rs. 10 each | Shares of the of Re 0.02 | Shares of the
Company each Company
1 Promoter - 2,76,60,97,350 92.25 | 2,76,60,97,350 92.25
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited*
2 Public Shareholders - 23,22,91,866 7.75 23,22,91,866 7.75
I. Emerging India Fund 1,87,16,860 0.63 1,87,16,860 0.63
Il.  Aay Kay Global 21,35,75,006 7.12 21,35,75,006 7.12
Grand Total 2,99,83,89,216 100.00 | 2,99,83,89,216 100.00

* Includes shares held by MVML jointly with individuals

f)

The pre and post Scheme (expected) shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company as on 315t March, 2017, is as under:

Pre Scheme & Post Scheme Equity Capital:

Shareholding as on Shareholding as on
315t March, 2017 315t March, 2017
Sr. Category of shareholder (Pre Scheme) (Post Scheme)
No. No. of Shares % of total | No. of Shares % of total
Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
(@) Individual/Hindu Undivided Family 39,42,046 0.64 39,42,046 0.64
KESHUB MAHINDRA 4,42,296 0.07 4,42,296 0.07
ANAND GOPAL MAHINDRA 7,15,004 0.12 7,15,004 0.12
ANJALI MEHRA 1,11,104 0.02 1,11,104 0.02
ANUJA P SHARMA 34,259 0.01 34,259 0.01
ANURADHA MAHINDRA 2,28,545 0.04 2,28,545 0.04
DEVESHWAR JAGAT SHARMA 12,000 0.00 12,000 0.00
DHRUV S SHARMA 12,000 0.00 12,000 0.00
GAUTAM P KHANDELWAL 300 0.00 300 0.00
LEENA S LABROO 7,06,192 0.1 7,06,192 0.1
NISHEETA LABROO 80,000 0.01 80,000 0.01
RADHIKA NATH 46,808 0.01 46,808 0.01
SANJAY LABROO 72,720 0.01 72,720 0.01
SUDHA KESHUB MAHINDRA 7,26,016 0.12 7,26,016 0.12
UMA R MALHOTRA 7,54,802 0.12 7,54,802 0.12
(b) Central Government/State Government(s) 0 0.00 0 0.00
(c) Financial Institutions/Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00
(d) Any Other 15,24,76,327 24.54| 15,24,76,327 24.52
(i) Bodies Corporates 7,11,28,386 11.45 7,11,28,386 11.44
PRUDENTIAL MANAGEMENT & SERVICES 7,07,60,970 11.39 7,07,60,970 11.38
PRIVATE LIMITED
KEMA SERVICES INTERNATIONAL PVT. LTD. 3,67,416 0.06 3,67,416 0.06
(i) MAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA EMPLOYEES' 2,74,81,857 4.42 2,74,81,857 4.42
STOCK OPTION TRUST
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Shareholding as on
31t March, 2017

Shareholding as on
31t March, 2017

Sr. Category of shareholder (Pre Scheme) (Post Scheme)
No. No. of Shares % of total | No. of Shares % of total
Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company
(iii) EMPLOYEE WELFARE TRUST 20,30,870 0.32 20,30,870 0.32
M&M EMPLOYEES WELFARE FUND NO. 12,63,156 0.20 12,63,156 0.20
1 - RAJAN RAGHUNATH SURVE, VIJAY
BHALCHANDRA  THAKURDESAI, DAXA
JAWAHAR BAXI - TRUSTEES
M&M EMPLOYEES WELFARE FUND NO. 6,82,914 0.11 6,82,914 0.11
2 - RAJAN RAGHUNATH SURVE, VIJAY
BHALCHANDRA  THAKURDESAI, DAXA
JAWAHAR BAXI - TRUSTEES
M&M EMPLOYEES WELFARE FUND NO. 84,800 0.01 84,800 0.01
3 - RAJAN RAGHUNATH SURVE, VIAY
BHALCHANDRA  THAKURDESAI, DAXA
JAWAHAR BAXI - TRUSTEES
(iv) M&M BENEFIT TRUST- BHARAT N DOSHI, 5,18,35,214 8.35 5,18,35,214 8.34
A.K. NANDA - TRUSTEES
Sub-total (A)(1) 15,64,18,373 2518 | 15,64,18,373 25.16
(2) Foreign
(a) Individuals (Non- Resident Individuals)/Foreign 5,49,422 0.09 5,49,422 0.09
Individuals
YUTHICA KESHUB MAHINDRA 5,49,422 0.09 5,49,422 0.09
(b) Government 0 0.00 0 0.00
(c) Institutions 0 0.00 0 0.00
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0.00 0 0.00
(e) Any other 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-total (A)(2) 5,49,422 0.09 5,49,422 0.09
Total shareholding of Promoter (A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 15,69,67,795 25.27 | 15,69,67,795 25.25
B. Public Shareholding
1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds 4,09,08,501 6.59| 4,09,08,501 6.58
SBI FUND along with its sub-accounts 71,83,149 1.16 71,83,149 1.16
FRANKLIN TEMPLETON MUTUAL FUND along 71,29,813 1.15 71,29,813 1.15
with its sub-accounts
ICICI PRUDENTIAL FUND along with its 68,19,017 1.10 68,19,017 1.10
sub-accounts
(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
(d) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0.00 0 0.00
(e) Foreign Portfolio Investors (including Flls & FPC's) | 21,43,30,813 3451| 21,43,30,813 34.48
EUROPACIFIC GROWTH FUND 2,00,51,100 3.23 2,00,51,100 3.23
GOVERNMENT OF SINGAPORE 1,39,31,914 2.24 1,39,31,914 2.24
FIRST STATE INVESTMENTS ICVC-STEWART 1,21,91,090 1.96 1,21,91,090 1.96
INVESTORS AS
DODGE AND COX INTERNATIONAL STOCK FUND 71,71,971 1.15 71,71,971 1.15
ARANDA INVESTMENTS (MAURITIUS) PTE LTD 68,32,016 1.10 68,32,016 1.10
(f) Financial Institutions/Banks 22,49,638 0.36 22,49,638 0.36
(g) Insurance Companies 8,07,20,400 13.00 8,07,20,400 12.99
LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 6,80,51,139 10.96 6,80,51,139 10.95
alongwith its sub accounts
GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 64,50,000 1.04 64,50,000 1.04
(h) Provident Funds/Pension Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
(i) Any Other 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-total (B)(1) 33,82,09,352 54.46 | 33,82,09,352 54.41
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Shareholding as on Shareholding as on
31t March, 2017 31t March, 2017
Sr. Cateqorv of shareholder (Pre Scheme) (Post Scheme)
No. gory No. of Shares % of total | No. of Shares % of total
Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company
2 Central Government/State Government(s)/President 9,43,161 0.15 9,43,161 0.15
of India
Sub-total (B)(2) 9,43,161 0.15 9,43,161 0.15
3 Non-Institutions
(a) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding nominal 3,96,32,028 6.38 3,96,32,028 6.38
share capital upto Rs. 2 lakh
ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal 60,24,024 0.98 60,24,024 0.97
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh
(b) NBFCs Registered with RBI 19,982 0.00 19,982 0.00
(c) Employee Trust 0 0.00 0 0.00
(d) Overseas Depositories (holding DRs) (Balancing 0 0.00 0 0.00
Figures)
(e) Others 4,64,16,191 7.47 4,69,20,079 7.55
i)  Bodies Corporates 3,46,78,261 5.58 3,51,82,149 5.66
ICICI PRUDENTIAL  LIFE INSURANCE 1,61,35,508 2.60 1,61,35,508 2.60
COMPANY LIMITED
ii) Non Resident Indians - Repatriation 10,70,264 0.17 10,70,264 0.17
iii) Non Resident Indians - Non Repatriation 11,69,551 0.19 11,69,551 0.19
iv) Foreign Nationals 551 0.00 551 0.00
v)  Trust 40,12,663 0.65 40,12,663 0.65
vi) Clearing Members 35,07,359 0.56 35,07,359 0.56
vii) Foreign Bodies 3,69,582 0.06 3,69,582 0.06
viii) Overseas Corporate Bodies 16,07,960 0.26 16,07,960 0.26
Sub-total (B)(3) 9,20,92,225 14.83 9,25,96,113 14.90
Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2) + (B)(3) 43,12,44,738 69.44 | 43,17,48,626 69.46
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs 3,28,79,851 5.29 3,28,79,851 5.29
J P MORGAN CHASE BANK. NA 3,28,79,851 5.29 3,28,79,851 5.29
Grand Total (A+B+C) 62,10,92,384 100.00| 62,15,96,272 100.00
g) Capital Structure of the Resulting Company - Pre and Post Scheme (Expected)
i.  Pre-Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company is mentioned in point 3 of this Explanatory Statement. The
Post-Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company is as follows
Particulars Amount Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:
2500,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 0.02 each 50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital:
299,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Re. 0.02 each 5,99,67,784
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ii.  Pre and Post Scheme capital structure of the Resulting Company is as follows:

Description Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme

as on December 31, 2016 as on December 31, 2016
Authorized Share Capital: No. of Shares Amount Rs. No. of Shares Amount Rs.
Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 120,00,00,000 600,00,00,000 810,00,00,000 4050,00,00,000
Unclassified Shares of Rs. 100/- each 25,00,000 25,00,00,000 25,00,000 25,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share
Capital:
Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 62,10,92,384 310,54,61,920 62,15,96,272 310,79,81,360

9. Amount due to unsecured creditors:

As on 28% February, 2017 - In Rs. crores

M&M MTWL
7,111.35 87.89

10. Statement disclosing details of Arrangement as per sub-section 3 of Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company

(i) Details of the order of the NCLT directing the calling, convening and conducting of the meeting :-

A Date of the order Order dated 5% April, 2017 Order dated 5™ April, 2017

B Date, time and venue | Tuesday, 13*" June, 2017 at 9 a.m. at Ground | Tuesday, 13* June, 2017 at 3 p.m. at Birla
of the Meeting Floor, Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, | Matushri Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey

Mumbai - 400 001 Marg (New Marine Lines), Mumbai - 400 020

(ii) | Details of the Companies including

A Corporate Identification | U35911MH2008PLC185462 L65990MH1945PLC004558
Number (CIN)

B Permanent  Account | AAFCM6870J AAACM3025E
Number (PAN)

C Name of Company Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

D Date of Incorporation | August 5, 2008 October 2, 1945

E Type of Company Public Public

F Registered Office | Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, | Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder,
address Mumbai - 400 018 Mumbai - 400 001
E-mail address bade.kiran@mahindra.com investors@mahindra.com
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No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company
G Summary of main | (i) To design, develop, manufacture, assemble, | Currently, the objects of the Company as set out

object as per the
memorandum of
association; and main
business carried on by
the Company

test, produce, buy, sell, distribute, trade,
import, export, alter, remodel, hire, exchange,
repair, service, deal in two wheeled vehicles
and any other vehicles of every kind and
description, in India and elsewhere, whether
propelled by using gas, petroleum, diesel oil,
steam, oil, vapor, electricity or any other form
of energy or power.

(i) To design, develop, manufacture,
assemble, test, produce, buy, sell, distribute,
trade, import, export, alter, remodel,
upgrade, renovate, invent, hire, exchange,
repair, service, deal in all types of parts and
raw materials of every kind and description
required for or capable of being used for or in
connection with the object described above,
including but not limited to engines, gears,
transmission, axles, joints, springs, lamps,
chains, bodies, frames, chassis, tires, tubes,
batteries, goods, instruments, appliances,
apparatus, equipment, components, spare
parts, tools and products for the transport or
conveyance of passengers.

The Demerged Company is engaged in the
businesses of manufacturing and selling of
two wheelers (“Two Wheelers Business”) and
trading in spare parts and accessories (“MTWL
Spares Business”).

in the Memorandum of Association include the
following:

“(i) To buy, sell, import, export, manufacture,
treat, prepare and deal in merchandise,
commodities, machinery, tools, goods and
articles of all kinds and generally to carry on the
business as merchants, contractors, importers
and exporters.

(ii) To carry on the business of iron founders,
mechanical engineers and manufacturers of
agricultural implements and other machinery,
tool-makers,  brass-founders, iron masters,
metal-workers, boiler-makers, millwrights,
machinists, iron and steel converters, smiths,
coke manufacturers, wood-workers, builders,
painters, metallurgists, electrical engineers,
water supply engineers, gas-makers, smelters,
iron plate makers, farmers, printers, carriers and
merchants, and to buy, sell, manufacture, repair,
convert, alter, let on hire, and deal in machinery,
implements, rolling stock and hardware of
all kinds, and to carry on any other business
(manufacturing or otherwise) which may seem
to the Company capable of being conveniently
carried on in connection with the above, or
otherwise calculated, directly or indirectly, to
enhance the value of any of the Company’s
property and rights for the time being.

(iii) To carry on any business relating to
the winning and working of minerals, the
production and working of metals, and the
production, manufacture, and preparation of
any other materials which may be usefully or
conveniently combined with the engineering
or manufacturing business of the Company, or
any contracts undertaken by the Company, and
either for the purpose only of such contracts or
as an independent business.

The Resulting Company is engaged in the
business of manufacture and sale of tractors,
general-purpose utility vehicles, light commercial
vehicles three-wheelers and trucks and buses.
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No.

Particulars

Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Demerged Company

Resulting Company

Details of change
of name, registered
office and objects of
the company during
the last five years;

Nil

The Company had amended its Object clause by
insertion of the following clauses nos xvii z and
xvii z1, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement
between Mahindra Trucks and Buses Limited and
its Shareholders and Creditors and Mahindra &
Mahindra Limited passed by the Honourable
High Court of Judicature at Bombay vide its
Order dated 7* March, 2014.

(xvii z) To carry on the business of exporters &
importers of all types of manufactured goods
and substances including semi-finished or
semi-processed goods to all parts of the world
including without prejudice to the generality of
the foregoing, all types of vehicles, including
motor vehicles, tractors, engines, pumps,
electric motors, transformers, switch-gears and
electric appliances of all types, machinery of all
types, machine tools, agricultural implements,
chemicals, synthetic products, rubber tyres,
cords, tubes, typewriters, refrigerators, scientific
instruments and all and any type of equipment,
appliance and product, minerals, raw materials,
semi and manufactured products, fabrics made
from natural or artificial fibers, garments, foods
and beverages.

(xvii z 1) To engage in the business of designing,
developing, manufacturing, producing,
assembling, selling, buying, distributing,
exporting, importing re-selling, exchanging,
altering, improving, assembling, dealing in
marketing, procuring, sourcing and acting as
buying and selling agents, commission agents,
merchants, distributors, traders in and brokers
for automotive vehicles including but not limited
to trucks, lorries, buses, omni buses, trailors,
tractors, motor cars, auto-rickshaws, scooters,
motor-scooters, three wheelers motor cycles,
cycles, engines, locomotives, turbines, tanks,
ships, boats, barges, launches, aeroplanes,
airships, seaplanes, balloons and aircraft of
every description and also of various parts and
components including but not limited to chassis,
engines, replacement parts, tools, aggregates,
implements, spare parts, accessories, materials
of all or any of the above mentioned motor
vehicles used for the transport or conveyance
of passengers, merchandise and goods of
every description whether propelled or used by
electricity, steam, oil vapour, gas, petroleum,
diesel oil or any other motive or mechanical
power, in India or elsewhere and to render all or
any services in relation or in connection with any
or all of the aforesaid activities such as but not
limited to, supply chain management services,
after sales support and services and financing
for such automotive vehicles.

Name of the stock
exchange (s) where
securities  of  the
company are listed, if
applicable;

Not Applicable

Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed
on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited. The Global Depository Receipts of
the Company are listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange and are also admitted for trading on
International Order Book of the London Stock
Exchange.

Details of capital
structure — Authorised,
Issued, Subscribed and
Paid up share capital;

As per Para 3 of the Explanatory Statement
and Clause 5 of Part | of the Scheme.

As per Para 4 of the Explanatory Statement and
Clause 5 of Part | of the Scheme.




MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company
K Names and addresses | Name of the Promoter | Address Name of the Promoter | Address
of Promoters of the|Mahindra Vehicle Mahindra Towers, Mr. Keshub Mahindra | Gateway Building,
Company: Manufacturers Limited | P. K. Kurne Chowk, Apollo Bunder,
Worli, Mumbai - 400 001.
Mumbai - 400 018. | My, Anand G. Gateway Building,
Mahindra Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai - 400 001.
L Names and addresses | Name of the Director | Address Name of the Director |Address

of Directors of the

Company:

Dr. Pawan Goenka

Mahindra Towers,
G. M. Bhosale Marg,
Worli,

Mumbai - 400 018.

Mr. Anand Mahindra

Gateway Building,
Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai - 400 001.

Mr. Rajesh Jejurikar

15t Floor,
Mahindra Towers,
Kandivli (East),
Mumbai - 400 101.

Dr. Pawan Goenka

Mahindra Towers,
G. M. Bhosle Marg,
Worli,

Mumbai - 400 018.

Mr. V. S. Parthasarathy

Mahindra Towers,
G. M. Bhosale Marg,
Worli,

Mumbai - 400 018.

Mr. Deepak S. Parekh

HDFC Ltd, HDFC
House, 6 Floor, H.T.
Parekh Marg, 165-166,
Backbay Reclamation,
Churchgate,

Mumbai - 400 020.

Mr. Ranjan Pant
(ceased to be a
Director w.e.f. 27t
April, 2017)

Portion-B, 10-A,
Kasturba Gandhi
Marg,

New Delhi, 110 001.

Mr. Nadir B. Godrej

Godrej Industries
Limited, Eastern Express
Highway, Vikhroli,
Mumbai - 400 079.

Mr. Shirish Saraf

Flat No. 603,
Block-17, Heritage
City Gurgaon,
Haryana - 120002

Mr. M. M.
Murugappan

Dare House, New #
2, NSC Bose Road,
Chennai - 600 001.

Dr. Punita Kumar Sinha

51 Gate House
Road, Newton MA,
Massachusetts,
024671320, United
States Of America

Mr. R. K. Kulkarni

C/o. Khaitan &

Co., One Indiabulls
Centre, 13t Floor, 841,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai - 400 013.

Mr. Naveen Kumar

Kshatriya

1101, B Wing,
11th Floor Lodha
Bellissimo, Apollo
Mills Compound,
N. M. Joshi Road,
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai - 400 011

Mr. Anupam Puri

17 East, 16 Street,
Apartment 11, New
York, NY 10003 USA.

Dr. Vishakha N. Desai

Special Advisor for
Global Affairs, Office of
the President

Columbia University,
490 Riverside Drive
MLK Building,

5t Floor, Suite 509 New
York, NY 10027.

Mr. Vikram Singh
Mehta

23, Friends Colony,
West, New
Delhi - 110065

Mr. S. B. Mainak

B-1503, Oberoi Woods,
Mohan Gokhale Marg,
Off Western Express
Highway, Goregaon
(East),

Mumbai - 400 063.

Mr. T. N. Manoharan

No. 27, Subramaniam
Street, Abiramapuram,
Chennai - 600 018.
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report (if applicable)

including basis
of  valuation and
fairness opinion
of the registered

valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the
valuation report s
available for inspection
at registered office of
the Company

No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company
(iii) [If the scheme of|Step down Subsidiary of the Resulting|Holding Company of the Demerged Company.
arrangement  relates | Company.
to more than one
company, the fact Also refer Para 5(a) of the Explanatory Statement.
and details of |Also refer Para 5(a) of the Explanatory
any relationship | Statement.
subsisting between
such companies who
are parties to such
scheme of compromise
or arrangement,
including holding,
subsidiary or associate
companies.
(iv) |[The date of board |3 December, 2016 3 December, 2016
Meeting at which the Directors who voted in favour of the |Directors who voted in favour of the Resolution:
scheme was approved Resolution:
by the board of ' Mr. Anand G. Mahindra
directors including the | Mr. Rajesh Jejurikar
. Dr. Pawan Goenka
name of directors who Mr. V. S. Parthasarath
voted in favour of the| " " ™ y Mr. M. M. Murugappan
resqlutlon, who vo’Fed Mr. Naveen Kshatriya Mr. R. K. Kulkarni
against the resolution
and who did not vote Mr. Vikram Singh Mehta
or participate on such | Name 'of .dlrectors who voted against the Mr.S. B. Mainak
resolution. resolution:
Nil Mr. T. N. Manoharan
Name of Director(s) who voted against the
resolution and who did not vote or participate
Name of Director(s) who did not vote or|on such resolution:
participate on such resolution: Nil
Dr Pawan Goenka, being interested, neither
participated nor voted.
(v) | Explanatory statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or arrangement including:-
A Parties involved in | Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (Demerged Company).
such compr?mlse Tl Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (Resulting Company).
arrangement;
Appointed Date October 1, 2016 or such other date as may be directed or approved by the NCLT.
Effective Date The last of the dates, if applicable on which the certified or authenticated copy of the orders
of the NCLT sanctioning the scheme are filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai by the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.
B Share entitlement ratio | 1 fully paid equity share of Rs. 5 each of the Resulting Company for every 461 fully paid equity
(if applicable) and |shares held by the shareholders in the Demerged Company.
other considerations,
if any
C Summary of Valuation | The Share Entitlement Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative equity valuation of

Two Wheelers business attributable to each equity share of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company based on the various methods and various qualitative factors relevant to each
company and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the businesses having regard to
information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations.

Valuers, as considered appropriate, have independently applied methods and arrived at their
assessment of value per share of the Two Wheelers business attributable to each equity share
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. To arrive at the consensus on the Fair
Entitlement Ratio for the proposed demerger, suitable rounding off have been done in the
values arrived at by the Valuers.

In light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as
discussed and outlined in the Valuation Report, the Share Entitlement Ratio for the proposed
demerger of Two Wheelers business has been arrived at.
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No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company
Refer Annexure B-| for Valuation Report Refer Annexure B-I for Valuation Report; and B-II
The same is available for inspection at the for fairness opinion.
Registered Office of the Company situated | The same is available for inspection at the
at Mahindra Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial |Registered Office of the Resulting Company
Department, Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, |and/or at the Corporate Office of the Applicant
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 | Company at Mahindra Towers, 5% Floor,
on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays | Secretarial Department, Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg,
and Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. (IST) | P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on
to 1.00 p.m. (IST) upto one day prior to the | all working days, (except Saturdays, Sundays and
date of the Meeting. Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00
p.m. (IST) upto one day prior to the date of the
Meeting.
D Details of capital or |Refer Clause 6 of the Scheme. NIL
debt restructuring, if
any
E Rationale  for  the |Refer Clause 1.5 of the Scheme.
arrangement Also refer Para 5 (c) of the Explanatory Statement.
F Benefits of the | As provided in the rationale for Arrangement in Clause 1.5 of the Scheme and as stated in
arrangement as | Para 5 (e) of the Explanatory Statement.
perceived by the Board
of directors to the
company,  members,
creditors and others
(as applicable)
G Amount due to | Rs. 87.89 crores Rs. 7,111.35 crores
unsecured creditors as
of December 31, 2016.

(vi) | Disclosure about effect of the compromise or arrangement on

A Key Managerial | No effect except for dilution in percentage | No effect except for dilution in percentage of
personnel (KMP) | of their shareholding, if any, held in the |their shareholding held, if any, in the Resulting
(other than Directors) |Resulting Company. Company.

B Directors No effect except for dilution in percentage | No effect except for dilution in percentage of
of their shareholding, if any, held in the |their shareholding, if any, held in the Resulting
Resulting Company. Company.

C Promoters No shares will be issued by the Resulting |Reduction in percentage of shareholding in the
Company to MVML (being the promoter |Resulting Company.
shareholder holding 92.25% shares in the
Company as on 31t March, 2017), since MVML
is a subsidiary of the Resulting Company and
as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

a subsidiary company cannot hold shares in its
holding company.

D Non-promoter members | In consideration of the shares held by the |Increase in Non-Promoter shareholding in the
Non-Promoter shareholders in MTWL, they | Total Capital of the Company to the extent of
will be allotted equity shares in Resulting |shares allotted under the Scheme.

Company and such equity shares will form
part of public shareholders of the Resulting
Company.

E Depositors No effect as the Demerged Company has not | No effect.
accepted any deposits

F Creditors Creditors, if any, pertaining to Two Wheelers | No effect.

Undertaking shall become the creditors of
the Resulting Company and paid off in the
ordinary course of business.

Inter-company creditors would get cancelled.

G Debenture holders No effect as the Demerged Company has not | No effect.
issued any debentures

H Deposit trustee and |No effect as the Demerged Company does not | No effect.

debenture trustee

have any Deposit or Debenture trustees.
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No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company

| Employees of the|No effect as employees pertaining to Two | No effect.
company Wheelers Undertaking will become employees

of the Resulting Company

(vii) | Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
and debenture trustee

A Directors No effect.

B Key Managerial | No effect.

Personnel

C Debenture Trustee Not Applicable as the Demerged Company | No effect.

does not have any debenture trustees

(viii) | Investigation or [ None
proceedings, if any,
pending against the
company under the
Act

(ix) | Details of the availability of the following documents for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or
inspection by the members and creditors, namely:

A Latest Audited | Available for inspection at the Registered | Available for inspection at the Registered Office
Financial ~ Statements | Office of the Company situated at Mahindra | of the Resulting Company and/or at the Corporate
of the  Company|Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial Department, | Office of the Resulting Company at Mahindra
including consolidated | Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, | Towers, 5% Floor, Secretarial Department,
financial statements Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on all working|Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk,

days (except Saturdays, Sundays and|Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on all working days,

Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to | (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays)

1.00 p.m. (IST) upto one day prior to the date | between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00 p.m. (IST) upto

of the Meeting. one day prior to the date of the Meeting.
Additionally, it is also available on the website of
the Resulting Company and the Stock Exchanges,
where its shares are listed.

B Copy of the order of | Available for inspection at the Registered | Available for inspection at the Registered Office
Tribunal in pursuance | Office of the Company situated at Mahindra | of the Resulting Company and/or at the Corporate
of which the Meeting | Towers, 5% Floor, Secretarial Department, | Office of the Resulting Company at Mahindra
is to be convened or|Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, | Towers, 5% Floor, Secretarial Department,
has been dispensed |Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on all working |Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk,
with days (except Saturdays, Sundays and|Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on all working days,

Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to | (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays)
1.00 p.m. (IST) upto one day prior to the date | between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00 p.m. (IST) upto
of the Meeting. one day prior to the date of the Meeting.

C Copy of Scheme of |Enclosed as Annexure A to this Notice. Enclosed as Annexure A to this Notice.
Arrangement Also available for inspection at the Registered | Also available for inspection at the Registered

Office of the Company situated at Mahindra | Office of the Resulting Company and/or at the
Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial Department, | Corporate Office of the Resulting Company
Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, |at Mahindra Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 and at office of its | Department, Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg,
Advocates, M/s. Hemant Sethi & Co., 1602 Nav | P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai-400 018 and at
Parmanu, Behind Amar Cinema, Chembur, | office of its Advocates, M/s. Hemant Sethi & Co.,
Mumbai - 400 071 on all working days (except | 1602 Nav Parmanu, Behind Amar Cinema,
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) | Chembur, Mumbai - 400 071 on all working days,
between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00 p.m. (IST) | (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays)
upto one day prior to the date of the Meeting. | between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00 p.m. (IST) upto
one day prior to the date of the Meeting.
Additionally, it is also available on the website of
the Resulting Company and the Stock Exchanges,
where its shares are listed.
D Contracts or | There are no contracts or agreements material to the Arrangement.
Agreements material

to the arrangement
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No. |Particulars Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Demerged Company Resulting Company

E The certificate issued | Available for inspection at the Registered | Available for inspection at the Registered Office
by the Auditor of|Office of the Company situated at Mahindra | of the Resulting Company and/or at the Corporate
the  company  to|Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial Department, | Office of the Resulting Company at Mahindra
the effect that the|Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, | Towers, 5" Floor, Secretarial Department,
accounting treatment, | Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on all working |Dr. G. M. Bhosale Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
if any, proposed in the |days (except Saturdays, Sundays and|Mumbai - 400 018 on all working days, (except
scheme of compromise | Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. (IST) to | Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) between
or arrangement is in|1.00 p.m. (IST) upto one day prior to the date | 11.00 a.m. (IST) to 1.00 p.m. (IST) upto one day
conformity with the | of the Meeting. prior to the date of the Meeting.
Accounting Standards
prescribed under
section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013;
and

F Such other information | Refer Para 11(c) of the Explanatory Statement.
or documents as the
Board or Management
believes necessary and
relevant for making
decision things for or
against the scheme

(x) Details of approvals, | Notice under section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is being given to the Central Government,
sanctions  or  no-|Registrar of Companies, Directorate of Industries (Government of Maharashtra) and Income
objection(s), if any, | Tax Authorities in respect of both the companies and SEBI and concerned Stock Exchange(s) in
from regulatory or any | respect of Resulting Company;
other . .governme_ntal The Resulting Company has received no-objection letters from the Stock Exchanges.
authorities  required,
received or pending
for the proposed
scheme of compromise
or arrangement

(xi) |A statement to the|Membersto whom the Notice is sent may vote | Members to whom the Notice is sent may vote
effect that the persons | in the Meeting either in person or by proxies. |in the Meeting either in person or by proxies or
to whom the notice by voting through electronic means.
is sent may vote in
the meeting either in
person or by proxies,
or where applicable,
by voting through
electronic means

11. General:

a) The rights and interests of the Equity Shareholders, Secured or Unsecured Creditors of Demerged/Applicant Company
and the Resulting Company will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all called from
them nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

b) There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Applicant Company as of date.

¢) The following additional documents will be open for inspection to the equity shareholders of the Applicant Company

at its Registered Office between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays, up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the meeting:

(i)

Certified copy of the Order dated 5" April, 2017 of the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal

in the Company Application No. 351 of 2017 directing the convening and holding of the Meetings of the equity
shareholders of the Applicant Company;

(if)
Company;

(iii)

Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Demerged/Applicant Company and the Resulting

Joint Valuation Report on Recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio dated 3 December, 2016 issued by

Independent Chartered Accountants viz. M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP and M/s. SSPA & Co.;

(iv)

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited;
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(v) Observation Letter received from BSE Limited dated 8t March, 2017 and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
dated 10 March, 2017 addressed to the Resulting Company;

(vi) Copy of the Complaints Report dated 8™ February, 2017 submitted by the Resulting Company to BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

(vii) Register of Directors' Shareholding of the Applicant Company;

(viii) Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of Demerged/Applicant Company and the
Resulting Company dated 3™ December, 2016 approving the Scheme;

(ix) Copy of the annual reports of the Demerged and Resulting Company, respectively, for the financial year ended
31t March, 2016;

(x) Copy of the Supplementary Accounting Statement of the Demerged and Resulting Company for the period ended
31t December, 2016;

(xi) Copy of the Statutory Auditor’s certificate dated 26* December, 2016 issued by Messrs Deloitte Haskins & Sells
to the Demerged Company to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of
compromise or arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

(xii) Copy of the Statutory Auditor's certificate dated 3 December, 2016 and supplemental certificate dated
5t January, 2017 issued by Messrs Deloitte Haskins & Sells to the Resulting Company to the effect that the accounting
treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy may be obtained free of charge on any working day
(except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) from the Registered Office of Applicant Company or/and at the office
of Advocates situated at 1602 Nav Parmanu, Behind Amar Cinema, Chembur, Mumbai - 400 071.

e) This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and Section 102 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding Section 393 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

PAWAN GOENKA
DIN : 00254502
Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Dated this 10" day of May, 2017

Registered Office:

Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018
CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462

Email: bade.kiran@mahindra.com

Website: www.mahindratwowheelers.com
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Annexure A
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN
MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED
AND
MAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 391 TO 394 READ WITH SECTIONS 100 TO 104 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND SECTION 52 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1.  INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6
1.7

Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Company” or “MTWL"), a Company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956, and having its registered office at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018, Maharashtra, India is engaged in the businesses of manufacturing and selling of two wheelers (“Two
Wheelers Business”) and trading in spare parts and accessories ("“MTWL Spares Business”).

Mahindra and Mahindra Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or “M&M"), a Company incorporated
under the Indian Companies Act, VIl of 1913 and having its registered office at Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra, India is, inter alia, engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of tractors,
general-purpose utility vehicles, light commercial vehicles three-wheelers and trucks and buses. The equity shares of the
Resulting Company are listed on the Stock Exchanges (hereinafter defined).

MTWL is a subsidiary of Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited (“MVML"). MVML, a company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 is a wholly owned subsidiary of M&M. MVML, incorporated in the year 2007, having its registered
office at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400018, Maharashtra, India, is engaged in the business
of manufacture of motor vehicles, trailers, semi-trailers and other transport vehicles.

This Scheme, inter alia, provides for i) re-organisation of securities premium and share capital of the Demerged
Company- and ii) demerger of the Two Wheelers Undertaking (hereinafter defined in Part 1) of the Demerged Company
and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company, including consequential or related matters integrally
connected therewith.

The proposed demerger of the Two Wheelers Undertaking envisaged in this Scheme (“the Demerger”) is in line with
the Two Wheeler strategy of focusing on premium niche segment.

With M&M being present in many segments of the automotive industry e.g. Passenger & Utility Vehicles and Commercial
Vehicles including Three Wheelers, Trucks & Buses, the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers Undertaking of MTWL,
envisaged in this Scheme (“the Demerger”) in line with its strategy of focusing on niche premium Two Wheeler segment,
would enable the Undertaking to benefit from M&M'’s Design & Development and Sourcing capabilities. The proposed
demerger would also enable the Demerged Company to enhance focus on the spares business.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting company are of the view that the
transfer and vesting of the Two Wheelers Undertaking (hereinafter defined in Part I) of the Demerged Company with
the Resulting Company will enable both the companies achieve and fulfil their objectives more efficiently and in cost
effective manner, besides being in the interest of minority shareholders, in particular.

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be on a going concern basis.

2. PARTS OF THE SCHEME

2.1

This Scheme of Arrangement is divided into the following parts:

2.1.1 PART I deals with the definitions and share capital of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter) and the
Resulting Company;

2.1.2 PART Il deals with the re-organisation of securities premium and share capital of the Demerged Company and the
corresponding accounting treatment in connection therewith;

2.1.3 PART Il deals with the demerger of the Two Wheelers Undertaking of the Demerged Company and transfer and
vesting thereof into the Resulting Company;

2.1.4 PART IV deals with the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter);

2.1.5 PART V deals with the consideration for the demerger and accounting treatment for the demerger in the books
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company consequent to the demerger; and

2.1.6 PART VI deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.
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PART - |
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or context or meaning thereof, the following expressions shall have the
meanings as set out herein below:

3.1

3.11
3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1956 and/or the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, including any
statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof for the time being in force; it being clarified that as on
the date of approval of this Scheme by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company,
sections 391 to 394 and 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956 continue to be in force with the corresponding provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 not having been notified. Accordingly, references in this Scheme to particular provisions of
the Act are references to particular provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Upon such provisions standing re-enacted
by enforcement of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 such references shall, unless a different intention appears, be
construed as references to the provisions so re-enacted.

“Appointed Date” means 1%t October, 2016 or such other date as may be directed or approved by the High Court.

“Demerged Company” or “MTWL" means Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited, a Company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956, and having its registered office at Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400018,
Maharashtra, India.

“Effective Date” or “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” means the last of the
dates, if applicable, on which the certified or authenticated copy(ies) of the order(s) sanctioning the Scheme passed by
the High Court or any other Appropriate Authority, as may be applicable, is/are filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai.

“Governmental Authority” or “Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government,
legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court, tribunal, board, Stock
Exchanges, bureau, instrumentality, judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

“High Court” means the High Court of Judicature at Bombay or such other competent authority under the provisions of
Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the Act. It is hereby clarified that in the event that the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to scheme of arrangement become applicable and effective for the purposes of this
Scheme, all references to the High Court shall be deemed to include references to the National Company Law Tribunal
so constituted under the Companies Act, 2013.

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Resulting Company in consultation with the Demerged Company for
the purpose of reckoning the names of the equity shareholders (other than Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of
the Resulting Company) of the Demerged Company, who shall be entitled to receive shares of the Resulting Company
upon coming into effect of the Scheme.

“Remaining Business” or “Remaining Business of MTWL" shall mean all undertakings, businesses, activities and operations
including assets and liabilities of MTWL other than the Two Wheelers Undertaking. It shall specifically include the MTWL
Spares Business.

“Resulting Company” or “M&M" means Mahindra and Mahindra Limited a Company incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, VII of 1913 and having its registered office at Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001,
Maharashtra, India.

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited and Mahindra and Mahindra
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors, in its present form and/or with any modifications and
amendments thereto made under Clause 24 of this Scheme as approved or directed by the High Court or any other
Appropriate Authority.

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of the
Resulting Company are listed.

“Two Wheelers Undertaking” or “Demerged Undertaking” means MTWL's entire undertaking, business, activities and
operations pertaining to the Two Wheeler Business. The term Two Wheelers Undertaking shall include the following:

3.11.1 All assets (whether movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or
contingent, tangible or intangible) wherever situated and of whatever nature, pertaining thereto through which
MTWL carries on the business, activities and operations relating to the Two Wheelers Business.

26



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

3.11.2 All present and future liabilities (including contingent liabilities) loans, debts (whether secured or unsecured)
raised or incurred, current liabilities and provisions, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever and howsoever arising or accruing in relation to the business activities and/or operations relating
solely to the Two Wheelers Business.

3.11.3 Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Two Wheelers Business shall also include in particular:

3.11.3.1

3.11.3.2

3.11.3.3

3.11.3.4

3.11.3.5

3.11.3.6
3.11.3.7

3.11.3.8

3.11.3.9

All assets and properties including land, building, Plant and machinery, capital work in progress,
equipment, furniture and fixture, vehicles, computers, electrical installations and any other fixed asset
in relation to the Two Wheelers Business;

All current assets, inventory, stock-in-trade, account receivables, loans and advances, prepaid expenses
and other assets in relation to the Two Wheelers Business;

Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and bank accounts relating to the Two Wheelers Business
including fixed deposits;

Security deposits, advances, earnest monies, balances, advance lease rentals or other payments made to
or received from the lessors or suppliers or service providers in relation to the Two Wheelers Business
and includes deposits and balances with Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and
bodies, including all tax balances or balances with any tax authority or other statutory body pertaining
to the Two Wheelers Business, customers and other persons earnest moneys and/or security deposits
paid or received by MTWL in connection with the Two Wheelers Business;

All agreements (including but not limited to agreements with respect to immoveable properties by way of
lease, license and business arrangements), rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, registrations,
insurance policies, approvals, consents, engagements, arrangements, subsidies, concessions, exemptions
and all other privileges and benefits of every kind, nature and description whatsoever (including but
not limited to benefits of tax relief including under the Income-tax Act, 1961 such as credit for advance
tax, taxes deducted at source, etc., unutilised deposits or credits, benefits under the VAT/Sales Tax law,
VAT/sales tax set off, unutilised deposits or credits, benefits of any unutilised MODVAT/CENVAT/Service
tax credits, etc.) relating to the Two Wheelers Business;

Investments held by MTWL in relation to Two Wheelers Business;

All permanent employees of MTWL excluding those who are engaged in relation to the Remaining
Business;

All records, files, documents, reports, papers, computer programs, manuals, data catalogues, quotations,
sales and advertising materials, list of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit
information, customer pricing information and other records, whether in physical form or electronic
form in connection with or relating to the Two Wheelers Business;

All intellectual property including but not limited to technical know-how, assignment of trademarks and
other related rights, title and interest vested thereto rights owned or licensed, records, files, papers,
data and documents in the name of MTWL and in relation to the Two Wheelers Business, Brand name
and domain name;

3.11.3.10 All pending litigations or proceedings filed by or against the Demerged Company pertaining to the Two

Wheelers Business; and

3.11.3.11 All loans and cash credit facilities availed of by the Demerged Company for the purposes of the Two

Wheelers Business and other liabilities incurred in connection therewith.

Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Two Wheelers
Business or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Two Wheelers Business shall be decided by mutual
agreement between MTWL and the Resulting Company.

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

This Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) and amendment(s) made under Clause 24 of this
Scheme duly approved or imposed or directed by the High Court shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be
operative from the Effective Date. Therefore, for all regulatory and tax purposes, the Demerger would be effective from
the Appointed Date of this Scheme. Notwithstanding the above, the accounting treatment to be adopted to give effect to
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the provisions of the Scheme would be in consonance with Indian Accounting Standards 103 (“Ind AS 103”) and the mere
adoption of such accounting treatment will not in any manner affect the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the
Appointed Date.

5.  SHARE CAPITAL

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The share capital of MTWL as on 315t March 2016 is as under:

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Authorised capital

350,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

3500,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

265,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

2658,38,92,160

Subsequent to 31t March, 2016, there was a further allotment of 34,00,00,000 Equity Shares at Rs. 10 per share to
MVML on rights basis. The equity shares of MTWL are not listed on any stock exchange. MVML, which is a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Resulting Company, holds 276,60,97,350 Equity Shares of the Demerged Company.

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31t March, 2016 is as under:

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Authorised capital

120,00,00,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each and 25,00,000 Unclassified Shares of
Rs. 100 each

625,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

62,10,92,384 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid-up

310,54,61,920

Less : 2,84,58,577 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid-up issued to ESOP Trust
but not allotted to employees

14,22,92,885

Adjusted : Issued and Subscribed Share Capital of 59,26,33,807 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of
Rs. 5 each fully paid-up

296,31,69,035

The equity shares of the Resulting Company are listed on the Stock Exchanges.
PART - I
REORGANISATION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

REORGANISATION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF MTWL

Against the securities premium account and share capital of MTWL, it is proposed to write off:

6.1.1 The aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as on close of business hours on 30 September, 2016; and

6.1.2 The additional debit balance in Profit & Loss Account pursuant to clause 10.2, if any.

6.1.3 Aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as mentioned in clause 6.1.1. and the additional debit balance
in Profit & Loss Account as mentioned under clause 6.1.2 is collectively referred to as “MTWL Aggregate Book

Losses”

Accordingly, upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the MTWL Aggregate Book Losses shall be adjusted:

6.2.1 Against the securities premium account as on close of business hours on 30 September, 2016 aggregating to
Rs. 7,41,72,890 (Rupees Seven Crore Forty One Lakh Seventy Two Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety only); and

6.2.2 Balance against the re-organisation of issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of MTWL by reducing

face value and paid up value of equity share capital of Rs. 10 each to Re. 0.02 each.

The re-organisation of issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of MTWL shall be effected by an amount
of Rs. 2992,39,24,376 (Rupees Two Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Two Crore Thirty Nine Lakh Twenty Four Thousand

Three Hundred and Seventy Six Only).

Consequent upon the re-organisation, as mentioned above, the MTWL Aggregate Book Losses shall be reduced to NIL

and the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of MTWL will be revised as under:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Amount (Rs.)

299,83,89,216 Equity Shares of Re. 0.02 each

5,99,67,784

Out of the above, 276,60,97,350 equity shares will be held by MVML.

28




MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

6.5 The share certificates of MTWL in relation to the equity shares held by its equity shareholders shall, without any further
application, act, instrument or deed, be deemed to have been automatically modified pursuant to the re-organisation
of share capital contemplated in Clause 6.2.2 above.

6.6 The re-organisation of securities premium and share capital as aforesaid of MTWL shall be effected as an integral part
of and in terms of this Scheme and shall constitute sufficient compliance in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act
2013 and Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act 1956 and as the same does not involve either diminution of liability
in respect of unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any paid-up share capital, the provisions of Section
101 of the Act are not applicable. However, the order of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to
be an order under Section 102 of the Act as well as other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 (as notified)
confirming the re-organization.

6.7 The re-organisation of securities premium and share capital as aforesaid of MTWL as envisaged in the Scheme shall
not affect or impair in any manner the rights and interests of any of the creditors of MTWL, since MTWL, post such
reduction, would continue to be in a position to honor the dues of their respective creditors. Therefore, MTWL seeks
liberty of the High Court for dispensation of words “and reduced” to be added as suffix to its name, as contemplated
in section 102(2) and 102(3) of the Act.

PART - 1lI
DEMERGER OF TWO WHEELERS UNDERTAKING
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE TWO WHEELERS UNDERTAKING

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, with effect from the Appointed
Date after giving effect to Part Il of the Scheme, the Two Wheelers Undertaking (including all the estate, assets, rights,
claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and appurtenances of the Two Wheelers Undertaking) pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 of the Act and Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 shall stand transferred to
and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company, as a going concern without any further
act, deed, matter or thing in the following manner:

7.1  Assets

71.1 The whole of the Two Wheelers Undertaking shall without any further act, deed, matter or thing, stand
transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company so as
to vest in the Resulting Company all rights, title and interest pertaining to the Two Wheelers Undertaking;

7.1.2  All assets, investments, right, title or interest acquired by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date
but prior to the Effective Date in relation to the Two Wheelers Undertaking shall also, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred
to and vested in the Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 391 to 394 of the Act, provided however that no onerous asset shall have been acquired by the
Demerged Company in relation to any Two Wheelers Undertaking after the Appointed Date without the prior
written consent of the Resulting Company; and

7.1.3 All the movable assets of the Two Wheelers Undertaking and the assets which are otherwise capable of transfer
by physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash in hand, shall be so transferred to the Resulting
Company and deemed to have been physically handed over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery,
as the case may be, to the Resulting Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein passes
to the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a
date mutually agreed upon between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. However such date
of delivery shall be within 30 (thirty) days from the Effective Date or such other date as may be mutually agreed
upon by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

7.1.4 Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, all immovable property, whether
freehold or leasehold, (including but not limited to land, buildings, offices, factories, sites and any other
immovable property, including accretions and appurtenances) relating to the Two Wheelers Undertaking of the
Demerged Company, and any document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation thereto shall stand
transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done by the Demerged
Company and/or the Resulting Company and/or any other Appropriate Authority. The Resulting Company shall
be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations,
in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation and/or substitution of the title to the
immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company by the appropriate
governmental authorities and third parties pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the High Court and upon
the Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms hereof without any further act or deed on part of

29



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

7.2

73

7.4

the Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled
to engage in such correspondence and make such representations as may be necessary for the purposes of the
aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

Contracts

7.2.1 All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in
relation to the Two Wheelers Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective
Date, shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may be, the Resulting Company
in which the Two Wheelers Undertaking vests by way of demerger hereunder and may be enforced as fully and
effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or
obligee thereto or thereunder; and

7.2.2 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Two
Wheelers Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after the
coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or
otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other
writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged
Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this
Scheme. The Resulting Company shall, under the provisions of Part Ill of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised
to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company in relation to the Two Wheelers Undertaking
and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Demerged
Company to be carried out or performed.

Liabilities

7.3.1 All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Two
Wheelers Undertaking shall also, under the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Act, without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the
Resulting Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Resulting Company and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or

other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause;

7.3.2 Where any of the loans raised and used, liabilities and obligations incurred, duties and obligations of the
Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company, have been
discharged by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge
shall be deemed to have been for and on account of the Resulting Company; and

7.3.3 All loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company for the operations
of the Two Wheelers Undertaking with prior approval of the Resulting Company after the Appointed Date and
prior to the Effective Date, shall, subject to the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or
incurred for and on behalf of the Resulting Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective
Date, shall also without any further act or deed be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to
the Resulting Company and shall become the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company
which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same.

Licenses and Permissions

Any statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by the Demerged Company required to carry on
operations of the Two Wheelers Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to the Resulting Company without
any further act or deed, and shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour
of the Resulting Company and the benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and
consents, registration or other licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to the Resulting Company as
if they were originally obtained by the Resulting Company. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation
schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Governmental Authority or by any
other person, or availed of by the Demerged Company relating to the Two Wheelers Undertaking, are concerned, the
same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company on the same terms and conditions as applicable to
the Demerged Company, as if the same had been allotted and/or granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed to the
Resulting Company.
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PART IV
REMAINING BUSINESS

8. REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

8.1

8.2

8.3

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all other assets, liabilities, incentives, rights and obligations
pertaining thereto shall continue to be vested in and managed by the Demerged Company in the manner as provided
below.

All legal and other proceedings including any insurance claims by or against the Demerged Company under any statute,
whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in future, whether or not in respect of any
matter arising before the Effective Date and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including
those relating to any property, right, power, liability, obligation or duty, of the Demerged Company in respect of the
Remaining Business of the Demerged Company) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date:

8.3.1 The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and to be carrying on all business and
activities relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company for and on its own behalf;

8.3.2 The Demerged Company may enter into such contracts as the Demerged Company may deem necessary in respect
of the Remaining Business;

8.3.3 All profits accruing to the Demerged Company thereon or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Company shall, for all purposes, be treated as the profits, or losses, as the case may be,
of the Demerged Company;

8.3.4 All assets and properties acquired by the Demerged Company in relation to the Remaining Business on and after
the Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company; and

8.3.5 All liabilities (including contingent liabilities) loans, debts (whether secured or unsecured) raised or incurred,
duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising or accruing in
relation to the Remaining Business shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company.

PART V
CONSIDERATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

9. CONSIDERATION

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

In consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with the provisions of this
Scheme, the paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased in the manner set out in this Clause.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or
deed, for every 461 (Four Hundred and Sixty One) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and
allot to each member of the Demerged Company (other than Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of Resulting
Company) whose name appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to
his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, subject to the provisions of Clause
9.3 below, 1 (One) fully paid-up ordinary (equity) share of Rs. 5 each, of the Resulting Company. For this purpose the
number of shares held by the shareholders/members of Demerged Company before reorganisation of share capital
as referred in clause 6.2.2 will be considered. For the purposes of the allotment referred to in this Clause, fractional
entitlements shall be rounded-off to the next higher whole number.

The ordinary (equity) shares to be issued by the Resulting Company pursuant to Clause 9.2 above shall be issued
in dematerialised form, provided that the members of the Demerged Company have an account with a depository
participant and provided details thereof and such other confirmations as may be required are furnished by such members
of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company on or before the Record Date.

The ordinary (equity) shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant
to Clause 9.2 above shall be subject to the memorandum and articles of association of the Resulting Company and shall
rank pari passu in all respects, including dividend, with the existing ordinary (equity) shares of the Resulting Company.

The ordinary (equity) shares of the Resulting Company are listed and admitted to trading on the Stock Exchanges.
The Resulting Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/or undertakings as may
be necessary in accordance with the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of the Stock
Exchanges with respect to the issue of ordinary (equity) shares under this Scheme. On such formalities being fulfilled,
the Stock Exchanges shall list and/or admit such equity shares issued pursuant to this Scheme, for the purpose of trading.
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9.6

The ordinary (equity) shares allotted pursuant to Clause 9.2 shall remain frozen in the depositories system till listing/
trading permission is given by the Stock Exchanges, respectively and shall be subject to such lock-in as may be prescribed
by the Stock Exchange and/or other Governmental Authorities.

The issue and allotment of ordinary (equity) shares by the Resulting Company, to the shareholders of Demerged
Company as provided in Clause 9.2 is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out as
if the procedure laid down under Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of
the Act, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and
all other relevant Rules, Regulations and Laws for the time being in force were duly complied with.

10. IN THE BOOKS OF MTWL

10.1

10.2

The assets and the liabilities of MTWL being transferred to the Resulting Company after giving effect to clause 6.1.1 of
Part Il of the Scheme shall be transferred at values appearing in the books of account of MTWL as on the Appointed
Date;

The excess of assets over liabilities transferred under clause 10.1 above, shall be debited to Reserves (Balance in Profit &
Loss Account) of MTWL. In case of deficit, the same shall be credited to capital reserve.

11. IN THE BOOKS OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

1.1

1.2

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company shall account for the demerger of the Two Wheelers
Undertaking in its books of account with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

11.1.1 The Resulting Company shall account for the demerger in accordance with “Pooling of Interest Method” laid
down by Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business combinations of entities under common control) notified under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

11.1.2 All the assets and liabilities, after giving effect to clause 6.1.1 of Part Il of the Scheme pertaining to the Two
Wheelers Undertaking, transferred to the Resulting Company under the Scheme shall be recorded in the books of
the Resulting Company at the value and in the same form as recorded in the books of MTWL as on the Appointed
Date;

11.1.3 Pursuant to clause 9.2 of the Scheme, the consideration issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company
(other than Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of Resulting Company) in the form of equity shares of the
Resulting Company shall be credited to share capital account at the nominal value of the equity shares issued by
it;

11.1.4 If and to the extent there are inter-corporate loans, deposits or balances as between the Resulting Company and
Two Wheelers Undertaking, the obligations in respect thereof shall, on and from the Appointed Date, shall stand
cancelled and there shall be no obligation/outstanding in that behalf.

11.1.5 The deficit/surplus arising after recording the entries contained in clause 11.1.2 and clause 11.1.3 above shall be
transferred to Capital Reserve.

11.1.6 In case of any difference in accounting policies between the Two Wheelers Undertaking and the Resulting
Company, the impact of the same till the Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted to the Reserves of the
Resulting Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Resulting Company reflect the financial position
on the basis of consistent accounting policies.

11.1.7 All costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Scheme and to put it into operation and any other
expenses or charges attributable to the implementation of the Scheme shall be debited to the statement of profit
and loss of the Resulting Company.

Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of Resulting Company shall be restated for the
accounting impact of demerger, as stated above, as if the demerger had occurred from the beginning of the comparative
period in the financial statements.

PART VI
GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

12. RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANY AND DEMERGED COMPANY

12.1

Authorised share capital of M&M

12.1.1 As an integral part of the Scheme and upon effectiveness of the Scheme, an amount of Rs. 3450,00,00,000
(Rupees Three Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Crore only) shall stand transferred from the authorised equity
share capital of the Demerged Company to the authorised equity share capital of the Resulting Company and
upon transfer of the amount of Rs. 3450,00,00,000 (Rupees Three Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Crore only)
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from the authorised equity share capital of the Demerged Company to the authorised equity share capital of
the Resulting Company, the authorised equity share capital of the Resulting Company shall stand enhanced to
Rs. 4075,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Thousand and Seventy Five Crore only) divided into 810,00,00,000
(Eight Hundred and Ten Crore) Ordinary (Equity) shares of face value of Rs. 5 (Rupees Five) each and 25,00,000
(Twenty Five Lakhs) Unclassified Shares of Rs. 100 each, pursuant to Sections 13, 14 and 61 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act, as the case may be, without any further act, instrument or
deed by the Resulting Company and without any liability for payment of any additional fees or stamp duty in
respect of such increase as the stamp duty and fees has already been paid by the Demerged Company on such
authorised equity share capital, the benefit of which stands vested in the Resulting Company pursuant to the
Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date.

12.1.2 Subsequent to enhancement of the authorized equity share capital of the Resulting Company as contemplated
herein, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company shall stand modified and read as
follows:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 4075,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Thousand and Seventy Five
Crore only) divided into 810,00,00,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each and 25,00,000 Unclassified Shares of
Rs. 100 each, with such ordinary preferential or deferred rights, privileges and other conditions attaching thereto
as may be provided by the regulations of the Company for the time being in force and operation with power to
increase or reduce the capital of the Company and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being original
or increased into different classes and to consolidate or sub-divide such Shares and to convert Shares into Stock
and reconvert the Stock into Shares and to attach to such Shares or Stock such ordinary preferential or deferred
rights, privileges and other conditions as may be provided by the regulations of the Company for the time being
in force and operation.”

12.2 Authorised share capital of MTWL

12.2.1 Upon the scheme becoming effective, the existing authorised share capital of Rs. 3500,00,00,000 (Rupees Three
Thousand Five Hundred Crore) consisting of 350,00,00,000 (Three Hundred and Fifty Crore) equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each shall stand reclassified as equity share capital of Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crore) consisting of
2500,00,00,000 (Two thousand Five Hundred Crore) equity shares of Rs. 0.02/- each pursuant to Section 13, 14, 61
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act, as the case may be without any further
act, instrument or deed.

12.2.2 Upon the sanction of the Scheme, the Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of MTWL shall be read as:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty Crore) divided into 2500,00,00,000
equity shares of Re. 0.02/- each with power to increase and/or reduce the capital of the Company.”

13. TAX ASPECTS

13.1 This Scheme is in compliance with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section 2(19AA) and
Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 such that:

13.1.1 The transfer of the Two Wheelers Undertaking will be on a going concern basis with effect from the Appointed
Date.

13.1.2 If any terms or provisions of the Scheme is/are inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) and Section
72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with Section 2(19AA)
and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as on the Appointed Date; such modification shall not affect
other parts of the Scheme.

13.2 Upon Scheme becoming effective, it is clarified that all the taxes and the duties payable by the Demerged Company,
relating to the Demerged Undertaking, from the Appointed Date onwards, including all advance taxes, tax deduction at
source, tax liabilities, or any refunds or claims shall, for all purpose, be treated as advance tax payments, tax deduction
at source, tax liabilities, refunds or claims of the Resulting Company. Accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the Demerged Company, is expressly, permitted to revise and file and the Resulting Company is expressly permitted
to revise and file their respective, income tax returns including tax deduction at source certificates, sales tax/value
added tax returns, excise return, service tax returns, and other tax returns, and to claim refund/credit, pursuant to the
provisions of this Scheme.

13.3 In accordance with the relevant central or state legislation dealing with indirect taxes, as are prevalent on the Effective
Date, the unutilized credit relating to excise duties and value added taxes paid on inputs/capital goods lying to the
account of the Demerged Undertaking, shall be permitted to be transferred to the credit of the Resulting Company, as
if such unutilized credits were lying to the account of the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company shall accordingly
be entitled to set off all such credits against excise duty/applicable valued added tax payable by it.
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13.4 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, any TDS deposited, TDS certificates issued or TDS returns filed by the Demerged
Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall continue to hold good as if such TDS amounts were deposited,
TDS certificates were issued and TDS returns were filed by the Resulting Company.

13.5 The obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by the Demerged Company
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking under the Income Tax Act, 1961, service tax laws, central sales tax, state value
added tax or other applicable laws and/or regulations dealing with taxes, duties or levies shall be deemed to have been
made and duly complied with on behalf of the Resulting Company.

SECURITY

14.1 The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing securities, charges,
mortgage and other encumbrances if any, subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof
to the extent that such securities, charges, mortgages, encumbrances are created to secure the liabilities forming part
of the Demerged Undertaking. It is agreed by and between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, that
pursuant to the demerger, necessary steps shall be taken in order to effect the change/modification of charges, if any,
in the records of the Registrar of Companies.

14.2 It is clarified that unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company, in so far as the assets
comprising the Demerged Undertaking are concerned:

the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall without any further act or deed continue to relate to the said assets only after the Appointed Date
and the said assets shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to any other borrowings of the Demerged
Company;

14.3 Similarly, the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall continue to relate to the said assets only after the Appointed Date and shall not relate to or be
available as security in relation to any other borrowings of the Resulting Company and vice versa;

14.4 The other assets of the Demerged Company shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to the said
borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking; and

14.5 The Demerged Company may enter into such alternate arrangements with the lenders pursuant to the release of
security as per the provisions mentioned herein.

TRANSFER AT BOOK VALUES

All the assets, properties and the liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking being transferred by the Demerged Company shall
be transferred at values appearing in its books of accounts (ignoring revaluation) of the Demerged Company, immediately
before the demerger on the Appointed Date.

EMPLOYEES

16.1 On and from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed
by the Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with
the benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of
the Demerged Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue
to be governed by the same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The
Resulting Company undertakes to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company
with any of its respective employees thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment
of any retrenchment compensation, or any other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged
Company shall be taken into account.

16.2 It is expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund
created or any other special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to
the Demerged Undertaking shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation
to the administration or operation of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said
fund(s) in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the
end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the
necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the Resulting Company, either be continued as separate
funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to
and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the services of the employees of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having been continuous for the
purpose of the said fund(s); and
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16.3 With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the High Court and up to and including the Effective Date, the
Demerged Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except
with the prior written consent of the Resulting Company.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST
17.1 During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

17.1.1 The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and activities relating to the
Demerged Undertaking and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of the entire business and undertakings
in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for and on account of and in trust, on behalf of the Resulting Company.

17.1.2 All the income or profits accruing or arising to the Demerged Company and all costs, charges, expenses or losses
incurred by the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes of this
demerger be treated as the income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses of the Resulting Company, as the
case may be.

17.1.3 Any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges, attached, related or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking
exercised by the Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and
on behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent of the Resulting Company; and

17.1.4 The Demerged Company shall carry on the business pertaining to the Two Wheelers Undertaking with reasonable
diligence and business prudence and shall not alter or diversify business within the Two Wheelers Undertaking
nor venture into any new business (except for Remaining Business), nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber
or otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business without the
prior written consent of the Resulting Company or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to
the date of acceptance of this Scheme by the respective boards of directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company.

17.2 The Demerged Company shall not utilise the profits or income in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for the purpose
of declaring or paying any dividend in respect of the period falling on and after the Appointed Date, without the prior
written consent of the Resulting Company.

17.3 The Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Governmental Authorities
or other appropriate forums as may be required under any applicable law, for such consents, approvals and sanctions
which the Resulting Company may require.

PENDING PROCEEDINGS

18.1 All legal, administrative and other proceedings, of whatsoever nature pending in any court or before any authority,
judicial, quasi judicial or administrative or any adjudicating authority and/or arising after the Appointed Date and
relating to the Demerged Undertaking, or its respective properties, assets, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations shall
be continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date by or against the Demerged Company; and from the Effective
Date, shall be continued and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent
as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, had the Scheme not been
made. On and from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall have the right to initiate, defend, compromise or
otherwise deal with any legal proceedings relating to the Demerged Undertaking, in the same manner and to the same
extent as would or might have been initiated by the Demerged Company as the case may be, had the Scheme not been
made; and

18.2 If any suit, appeal or other proceedings relating to the Demerged Undertaking, of whatever nature by or against the
Demerged Company be pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected
by reason of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking or by anything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings
may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same
extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company as if
this Scheme had not been made.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against the Resulting Company, as
envisaged under this Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Company,
in relation to the Demerged Undertaking on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that
the Resulting Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Company, in
relation to the Demerged Undertaking, as done and executed on behalf of itself.
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VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ADJUSTMENTS ETC.

All Resolutions passed by the Demerged Company so far as they relate to or to be done or caused to be done in relation to
the Demerged Undertaking, shall be deemed to have been passed by the Resulting Company and deemed to have authorized
any Director of the Resulting Company or such other person(s) as authorized by any two Directors of the Resulting Company
to do all acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to give effect to these Resolutions, without any further acts to be done by
the Resulting Company.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby declared that nothing in the Scheme shall prevent the Resulting Company from
declaring and paying dividends, whether interim or final, to its equity shareholders.

APPLICATION TO THE HIGH COURT

22.1 The Demerged Company shall and the Resulting Company, if required, shall make applications/petitions to the High
Court for sanction of this Scheme, under Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act 1956
and Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act; and

22.2 Any dispute arising out of this Scheme shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the High Court.
CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
23.1 This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

23.1.1 The Scheme being approved by Directorate of Industries under part 1 of the 1993 Package Scheme of Incentives
as notified under Government of Maharashtra resolution. The Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority
of the respective members and/or creditors of the Demerged Company and of the Resulting Company, in terms
with the applicable provisions of the Act, directions of the High Court, regulations and guidelines issued by SEBI
(if applicable), as amended and updated from time to time, and as may be considered necessary to give effect to
the scheme.

23.1.2 The Scheme being approved by the Stock Exchanges;

23.1.3 The Scheme being approved by the High Court under Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the
Companies Act 1956 and Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013; and

23.1.4 The authenticated/certified copy of the order of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme being filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any
director or any other person authorised by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect) may assent to any
modifications or amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the High Court may deem fit to direct
or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the respective Demerged Company
and Resulting Company, including pursuant to the orders of the High Court and/or any other authorities as they may deem
fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or
difficulty that may arise for implementing and/or carrying out the Scheme. The Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director or any other person authorised by the
Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect) shall be authorised to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things
as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions
whether by reason of any orders of the High Court or of any directions given by any other appropriate authorities or for any
reason otherwise arising out of this Scheme and/or any matters concerning or connected herewith.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

25.1 In case the Scheme is not approved by the High Court or any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme
have not been obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, if this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the
board of directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they
consider appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme
shall become null and void and in such event no rights or liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred by
either the Resulting Company or the Demerged Company and each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and
expenses in connection with this Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

25.2 If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, held illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction, or unenforceable under
any present or future laws, then it is the intention of the parties that such part shall be severable from the remainder
of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme
to become materially adverse to any party, in which case the parties shall attempt to bring about a modification in the
Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and obligations of the Scheme, including but not limited to
such part.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and except as provided otherwise, all costs, charges, expenses, taxes including duties, levies in connection with the
Scheme and its implementation thereof, and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by the Resulting Company.
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Annexure B - |
5.H. Batliboi & Co. LLP SSPA & Co.
Chartared Accountants Chartered Accountanis
| The Ruby, 14" floar, 1™ Floor, "Arjun”,
20, Senppali Bapat Marg, Plot No, 6A,
Tulsi Pipe Road, Dadar (West), V. P. Road, Andhen (Wast),
| Mumbai — 400 028, Mumbai ~ 400 058.
Dated: 3 Dacombar 2016
To
The Board of Directors

Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

-1 Block Plot No. 18/,
MIDC Chinchwad,
Pung - 411018,

Dear Sir § Madam,

We refer fo respective engagemen! leller whereby S R. Bathbot & Co. LLP (hereinailer
referred 1o as "SRBC") and SSPA & Co. (herainafler referred 1o as "SSPAT) are jointly
appointed by Mahindra Two Wheelars Limited (hereinafter referred fo as "MTWL or "Cliant”)
for recommendation of fair entitiement ratio for the proposed demomer of Two Wheelers
biminess (hereinafier referred 1o as "Tangel business™) of MTWL into Mahindra & Mahindra

Limited {(hereinafler refamad o as “MEMT)

MEM and MTWL are hereinafler joinlly refermed lo as the "Companies”. The faic enlithernent
mfio for this reporl refers 1o number of equity shares of face value of
INR 5/ each of M&M, which would be issued 1o the minority shareholders of MTWL in addition
1o lheir equily sharehokding in MTWL ("Fair Entitlernent Ratio”)

SRBC and SSPA are hersinafter joinlly referred o as "Valuars® in this joint far antilemant
ratio report (“Repod”).

37



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Recommendalion of lar enfilament ratio of fhe miromy sharehokiers of MTWL
relating 1o the propossd dememger of Two Wheelers business of MTWL into MEM

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

MEM &5 primarily engaged In automodive and farm equpment businesses in India and
inlamatonaly, MEM was fsundsd in 1845 and & headguanared in Murmbal MENS
equity shares are lisled on both BSE Limited ("BSE™) and tha MNational Stock E
of India Limited ("MSE"), M&M haz reported consclidated total revenue of INR 7802
bilion and profit after tax of INR 321 bilion for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Mahindra Vehicle Manufaciurers Limited (*MVML") 15 & whaolly owned subsicary of
MEM.

MTWL s an indirect subsidiary of M&M and a direct subsidiary of MVML MTWL is
engaged in designing & manufacluring of scooters & motorcycles. MTWL was
incorporated in 2008 and & headguartared in Puna, MTWL has reporod consalidalad
total revenue of INR 7.0 billon and loss after tax of INR 8.2 billion for year ended
1 March 2016,

We understand that the management of the Compames (“Management”) are
contemplating demerger of the Two Wheslers business of MTWL inlo MEM
[ Transaction’) through a Composite 3cheme of Armangement "Scheme™) under the
provisions of Seclion 381-354 and Secbon 100-104 of the Companies Act 1958 and
Secbon 52 of the Companies Act 2013, As congedombion for thas Transacbon, the
minardy shareholders of MTWL would be issued squity shames of MEM. The Fair
Entitemant Ratio would be dedermined based an tha vales of aach equity shars of MEM
and the aquity value of Target business per equity share of MTWL

Wa undarstand that the proposed agpointed date for the demarger will ba 07 Oclober
2010

For the aforésaid purpose, the Board of Direclors of MTWL have appointed the Valuers,
e sl @ point Repan recommending Ihe Fair Enldlemant Ratio, for e seoe of MEMs
equity shares o the minonty shareholders of MTWL, i be placed before the Auwdit
Committes/Board of Direclom of the Claent

The scope of our sarvces 15 10 conduct @ ralalive (and not ebsolute) valustion of the
iscjeily shadies of MEM and Targel busmess, and neporl on the fair Enbllement Ralio for
ihe Transaclion in accordance wilh generally accepted professional standands

The Valuers have been appoinisd jointly bul have woked independently in (hisr
analysis. Both the Valuors have mcenod information nmd clanficatione from the
Management of MEM and MTWL The Valuers have independenty armved ot difforent
values per share of MEM and Targe! business, However, 1o amive at the consensus on
thir fair Enfilement Rabo for the Transacton, approprisbs rounding off has bean dona
iy Hher values arrived al by the Valuers

Wi hiaoee Bean prowided with aisdiled financinl staterments of MEM and unaudited carded
oul inancial statements of Targel business for the year ended 31 March 2018
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Recommendaton of fair entifkernent atio of the minoly sharehalders of MTWIL
refating to the proposed demerger of Two Wheekers busingss of MTWL into MEM

and unaudited financial rmesults for MEM and Target business for the half year ended
30 September 2016. We have taken into consideration the curmen! markel paramaters
in our analysis and have made adjustiments for additional facts made knawn o us bl
Ihe date of our Repord, The curmeni valustion does nol factor impac of any event
which s unusual or not in narmal course of business

We have rebed on the above while amving at ihe Fair Enfitlement Ratio for the
Transaction,

This Repori s our deliverable for the above engagement,

This Report is subject o the scope, assumplions, exclusions, limitations and
disclaimers delailed hereinafier. As such, the Report is to be read in totality, and nol
in parts, in conjunciion with the rebevant documents referred to therein.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exarcise, wa have used the following information about the
Gunpan[uﬁ recehlved from the Management andfor gathered from public domain:
Annual reports for the year ended 31 March 2016 and earfier vears for MAN.
Unaudited financials of Target business, which is carved gul from the audied
financials of MTWL for the year ended 31 March 2016 and earfier years,
* Unawdited financial statements for half year ended 30 September 2016 for
MEM and Targot busingss,
» Financial projections for the period D1 October 2016 to 31 March 2022 for
Targat business of MTWL,
= Discussions with the Management of the Companies (by the Valuers) in
connecion with the busmesa operations of the Companses, past rends and
non-recurring/abnomal femes, efc.;
& Draft Schame of Arrangement;
= Other information and documants for the purposs of this angagement.

it may be noted thal no projections for MEM wene provided to us.

During the discussions with tha Management of the Companies, we have also
obtained explanations and information considered reasonably necessary for our
exercise, The Clienl has been provided with the opportunity o review the draft
Report (excluding ihe recommended of Fair Enfilenent Ratio) as part of our
slandard practice {o ensure thal faciual inaccuracy | omissions ame avosded in our

final Report.
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Recommendation of falr entitement ratio of the minodty shareholders of MTWL
refating to the proposad demerger of Two Whealers business of MTWL info ME&M

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

Frovizion of valuation opinions and consideration of the Eswes described hersin ame
areas of our regulor practics. The services do nol represent accouniing, AsstEance,
accounhing { lax due diligence, consulting or tax related sernces thal may otherwsa
ke provided by us or our affiliates,

This Report, its contents and tha resulls herein are specific @ (i) the purpose of
valuation agreed as per the terms of our engagement; (i) the dale of this Repor and
(i) are based on the audited financial statements of ME&M and wnaudited carved out
financial statements of Targel business as at 31 March 2018, and unaudited fnancal
statements for the half year pariod ended 30 Septamber 2018 The Managemant has
représented (hal the business activities of M&M and Targel business including their
subsidiaries and associales, as applicable, have been carried oul In the nermal and
ordinary colrse between 30 Septernber 2016 and the Report date and that no
material adverse change has ocooumed in thelr respecive operations and financial
position between 30 Seplember 2016 and the Report date

A valuabon of this nalure i3 necessarnly based on (he prevaikng slock markel
financial, economic and othor condiions in goneral and ndusiny trends in particular
as in effect on, and the information made avalable 10 us a5 of, the date hansol,
Events ocoumring alfter the dale hereol may affect this Report and the assumplions
used in preparing i, and we do not assume any obligaton fo updats, revies or
reaffirm this Report.

In the ultimale analysis, valualion will have fo be tempered by the axercise of
judicious discretion by the Valuers and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant
factors, There will always be several faciors, e.g9. quality and integrty of the
management, presant and prospective compatition, yield on comparable securties
and markel sentiment, elc. which are not ewdent from the face of the balance sheels
bt which will strangty influsnce the warth of 3 share. This concept s also recognised

in judicial decisions,

The recommendation(s) rendored in this Report  only  represent  our
recommendatian{s) based upon information furnished by the Companias and oiher
sources and the sald recommendation{s) shall be considered to be in the nature of
non-binding advice, (our recommendation will however not be used for advising
anybody lo lake buy or sell decision, for which specfic opinicn needs io be taken
fram cxpert advisors). We have no obligation to update this Repon.

The determination of Far Enfitliement Ralio w not a precss science and the
conclusions armived at in many cases will, of necessily, be subjective and dependont
on the exercise of individual judgment. Thera is, therefore, no indisputable single
Entitlernent Ratio. While we have provided our recomemendation of the Entithement
Ratio based on the information avallable to us and within the scope and constrainds
of our engagement, others may have a different opinion as to the Fair Entitlemeant
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Recommendation of falr entilement ratio of the minonty sharaholdars of MTWL
ralabng io the proposed demenger of Two Wheslers businass of MTWL inbo MEM

Rato of the equity shares of MEM and Targe! busindss. The final respansibility for the
determenation of the Fair Entitiement Ratio at which the proposed demarger shall lake
prace will be wilth the Boand of Dreciors of the Clent, who should take into account
piher lacicrs such as their cwn azsassman] of the proposed Transaction and mpul of
athar adhvisors

In the couwrse of Ihe valuabon, we weré providéd with both written and verbal
infoemalion, including market, financial and operating dala

In necomdance with the terms of aur respectiva angagaments. we have assumad and
relied upon, without indapandan! verfication, (i) the accuracy of the information that
was publicly available and formed & substanlial basis for lhes Repart and (i) the
accuracy of information madée available o us by the Management/Companies, In
accordance wilth our Engogement Ledier and in accordance wilh the customany
approach adopted in valuation exercises we have not audited, reviewsd or otherwise
invashigated tha higtoncal financial informabon prowded o us Wa hava nol
indepandently inveshgated or olhersize varnfied the daln provided by The Comparies.
Accordingly, we do nolb eogeress an oganon o elfer any Toom of assurance reganding
the truth and fairness of the financial position as indicated in the fmandcial stalements.
Also, with respect to explonations and Iinformation sought from the Companies, we
have been given 10 understand by the Management of the Companies that they have
nol amitted any relevant and matanal faciors about 1he Companies and that they have
checked (he relevanos or malermlity of any spacific informabion to iha present exercise
wih us m case of any doubl Our conchimeons are based on the essumplions and
information given byf on bahall of the Companies. The Managemeni of the Companies
hao indicabed 10 us thal they hove understood (hat any omssions, InAccuracies o
misslalemants may matenally affect our valuation analysisiresults. Accordingly, we
pssume no msponsiblity for any erars in the information furnished by the Companies
and thair mpact on ihe Repord. Nothing has come (o owr stiention o indicala thal tha
informabon  prowded was malenafly mis-staled! ncorrec! of would not afford
reasonable grounds upon which o base the Report

The Report assumes that the Companies and their investes companies comply fully
wilh redevant bvws and requiations applicable in all its areas of operabons unless
atherwise stated, and thal the Companies and (hoir myesies companies: will boe
managed oA competent ant responsible mannar. Furlber, éxcépl a5 speahcally
siated 1o tha contrary, this Repor has given no consideration to matters of a legal
nafure, including (ssues of kegal Wi and complance with local laws, and Migation and
ather contingent habilfes that are nol reconded in e audtedunaudted balance shaat
al the Companies and (heir investes companies. Our conclusion of value assumes
fhak the psseds and labililes ol the Companses and e svesles companies, mfiecied
in (hiér espactye aest batance sheets rematn indact as of ihe Reporl date

We are nol advisors wilh respest to legal, lax and regulalory maticrs for the
Transacton
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relating to the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers business of MTWL into M&M

This Report does not look into the business/ commercial reasons behind the
Transaction nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not
address the relative merits of the Transaction as compared with any other alternative
business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could
be achieved or are available.

No investigation of the Companies’ (or their investee companies) claim to title of
assets has been made for the purpose of this Report and the Companies' (or their
investee companies) claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid. No
consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond
the loans disclosed in the accounts. Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for
matters of a legal nature.

The fee for the engagement is not contingent upon the conclusion of this Report.

We owe responsibility to only the Boards of Directors of the Client that has appointed
us under the terms of our respective engagement letters and nobody else. We will
not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions
taken, omissions of or advice given by any other to the Companies. In no event shall
we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from
fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Client, their
directors, employees or agents. In no circumstances shall the liability of a Valuer, its
partners, its directors or employees, relating to the services provided in connection
with the engagement set out in this Report shall exceed the amount paid to such
Valuer in respect of the fees charged by it for these senvices.

We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue of this Report.
It is understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. This Report
is not a substitute for the third party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/
independent advice that the third party should undertake for his purpose.

This Report is subject to the laws of India.

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration
statement, prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or
other agreement or document given to third parties, other than in connection with the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement, without our prior wrilten consent. In addition, this
Report does not in any manner address the prices at which equity shares of the
Companies will trade following announcement of the Transaction and we express no
opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of either Companies should
vote at any shareholders' meeting{s) to be held in connection with the Transaction.
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Recommendation of fair entittement ratio of the minority shareholders of MTWL
relating to the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers business of MTWL into M&M

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of MEM as at 30 September 2016 is
INR 2,963.2 million consisting of 62,10,92,384 equity shares of face wvalue of
INR 5 each. The shareholding pattern is as follows:

% Share
Shareholding Pattern as on 30-09-2016 No of Shares Holding

Promoter 15,75,00,895 25.36%
Public 43,02,39,580 69.27%

Non Promoter - Non Public® _3,3351908  5.37%
“Grand Total* o W=l ~ 52,10,92,384 100.00%
*represents equily shares underlying GDRs

Source: BSE filing

Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of MTWL as at 30 September 2016
is INR 29,983.9 million consisting of 2,998,389,216 equity shares of face value of
INR 10 each. The shareholding pattern is as follows:

Shareholding Pattern as on 30-09-2016 No of Shares ﬁg;‘?ﬂ';
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited 2,766,097,350 92 25%
Emerging India Fund 18,716,860 0.62%
Aay Kay Global 213,575,006 7.12%

GrandTotal . . = 2.998,389.216 100.00%.
Source: Management

APPROACH - BASIS OF DEMERGER

We understand from the Management that the proposed Scheme of Arrangement
contemplates the demerger of Target business of MTWL into M&M. Arriving at the
Fair Entittement Ratio for the proposed demerger of Target business of MTWL into
ME&M would require determining the relative values of Target business attributable to
each equity share of MTWL and the equily shares of M&M. These values are to be
determined independently but on a relative basis, and without considering the
current Transaction.

Page 7 of 10
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Recommendation of fair entitement ratio of the minority shareholders of MTWL
relating to the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers business of MTWL into M&M

There are several commonly used and accepted methods for determining the
Entitlement Ratio for the proposed demerger of Target business of MTWL into M&M,
which have been considered in the present case, to the extent relevant and
applicable, including:

Market Price method

. Comparable Companies CQuoted Multiples method
. Discounted Cash Flows method

. Net Asset Value method

bl el

It should be understood that the valuation of any company/business or its assets is
inherently imprecise and is subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of
which are difficult to predict and are beyond our control. In performing our analysis,
we made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance and general
business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the
Companies. In addition, this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market
conditions, the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Companies,
and other factors which generally influence the valuation of Companies and their
assets.

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for
which the valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different
purposes, it cannot be too strongly emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one
value for one purpose. Our choice of methodology of valuation has been arrived at
using usual and conventional methodologies adopted for transactions of a similar
nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner
based on our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature.

Market Price (“MP”) Method

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally
considered as the value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations
are arising from the shares being regularly and freely traded in, subject to the
element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in the value of the shares. But
there could be situations where the value of the share as quoted on the stock market
would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value of the share especially
where the market values are fluctuating in a volatile capital market. Further, in the
case of a merger/demerger, where there is a question of evaluating the shares of
one company against those of another, the volume of transactions and the number
of shares available for trading on the slock exchange over a reasonable period
would have to be of a comparable standard.

Comparable Companies’ Quoted Multiple (“CCM") Method

Under this method, value of the equity shares of a company is arrived at by using
multiples derived from valuations of comparable companies, as manifest through
stock market valuations of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle

=
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that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers,
incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen
carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

Discounted Cash Flows (“DCF") Method

Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows to the firm are discounted at
the cost of capital. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the
value of the firm. Using the DCF analysis involves determining the following:

Estimating future free cash flows:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that
are available to all providers of the company's capital — both debt and equity.

Appropriate discount rale fo be applied to cash flows iLe. the cost of capital:

This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the
opportunity cost to all the capital providers (namely shareholders and creditors),
weighed by their relative contribution to the total capital of the company. The
apportunity cost to the capital provider equals the rate of return the capital provider
expects to earn on other investments of equivalent risk.

Net Asset Value (“NAV") Method

The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net
assets of the business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or
replacement cost basis. This valuation approach may be used in cases where the
assets base dominates the eamings capability. A Scheme of Arrangement would
normally be proceeded with, on the assumption that the companies/ Companies
amalgamate as going concermns and an actual realization of the operating assets is
not contemplated. The operating asseis have therefore been considered at their

book values.

Cut of the above methods, the Valuers have used methods as considered
appropriate by them respectively.

BASIS OF DEMERGER

The basis of demerger of Target business of MTWL into M&M would have to be
determined after taking into consideration all the faclors and methods mentioned
hereinabove. Though different values have been arrived at under each of the above
methods, for the purposes of recommending the Fair Entillement Ratio of equity
shares, it is necessary to arrive at a single value of Target business attributable to
each equity share of MTWL and M&M. It is however important to note that in doing
so, we are not attempling to arrive at the absolute equity values of Target business
and M&M but at their relative values to facilitate the determination of the Fair

= L
- P 08
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Recommendation of fair entitement ratio of the minority shareholders of MTWL
relating to the proposed demerger of Two Wheelers business of MTWL into M&M

Entitlement Ratio. For this purpose, it is necessary to give appropriate weights lo the
values arived at under each method.

The Fair Entitlement Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative equity
valuation of Target business attributable to each equity share of MTWL and M&M
based on the various methods explained herein earlier and various qualitative factors
relevant to each company and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the
businesses, having regard to information base, key underlying assumptions and
limitations.

Valuers, as considered appropriate, have independently applied methods discussed
above and arrived at their assessment of value per share of the Targel Business
attributable to each equity share of MTWL and M&M, To amrive at the consensus on
the Fair Entittement Ratio for the proposed merger, suitable rounding off have been
done in the values arrived at by the Valuers.

In light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and
circumstances as discussed and outlined hereinabove, we consider that the Fair
Entitlement Ratio for the proposed demerger of Target business of MTWL into M&M
should be a ratio of 1 (One) equity share of M&M (of INR 5/- each fully paid up) for
every 461 (Four Hundred and Sixty One) equity shares of MTWL (of INR 10/- each
fully paid up).

We have examined only the fair and equitable basis for the fair exchange ratio for
the shareholders and not examined any other matter including accounting and tax
matters involved in the proposed merger,

Respectfully submitted,
 For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For SSPA & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number ICAI Firm Registration Number:
301003E/E300005 RO s 128851W
@W / 4 ém.iu
Ravi Bansal Sujal Shah
Partner Partner
Membership No: 049365 Membership No: 045816
Date: 3 December 2016 | Date: 3 December 2016
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men
emG/mam/rkl 75 December 03, 2016

Tao,

The Board of Directors,
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited,
Gateway Building,

Apolle Bunder,
Mumbai-400001

Dear Sirs/Madams,

Sub

ﬂ]hind[l 'lwn mgglgg umﬂ !l!m Mahm:lra & Mahi-n ra I.Iml@

We, 5B1 Capital Markets Limited {"SBICAP"), understand that Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
{"M&M” or the "Company”')} is contemplating a demerger of the two-wheeler business of Mahindra
Two Wheelers Limitad [“MTWL") (the business proposed to be transferred hereinafter referred as
“MEM Two Wheeler Business”) to the company (“Proposed Business Transaction™) and has
initlated a valuation exercise by appointing 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (hereinafter referred to as
“SRBLC") and S5PA & Co. (hereinafter referred to as "SSPA"). In this regard, the Company seeks
fairness opinion report from SBICAP on the swap ratio as recommended by the Valuers.

We have been requested to give a "Falrness Opinion Report” on the swap ratio for issuance of its
own equity shares to the minority shareholders of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited.

SBICAP has not undertaken the valustion of Two Wheeler Business. We have examined the
Valuation Report submitted by SRBC and S5PA, dated December 03, 2016 to the Company. We have
not independently checked or verlfied the assumptions made by SRBC and S5PA. We have reviewed
the historical financial and business information of the Company and certain comparable companies
and their valuation multiples, and other relevant information from publicly available sources, and
have taken into account such oiher matters as we deemed necessary including our assessment of
general economic, market and monetary conditions.

SEI CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
Mhudomm 202, Maker Tower 'E', Culfe Parade, Mumsbai $00 005, el +51 22 22178300, Fax: #31 22 72128332

l.!m-r\ldlhh Ia-nkvﬂnd!l
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Eor the purpose of the Fairmness Opinion report, unaudited carved out financials of Two Wheeler
business of MTWL up to September 30, 2016 and the projections till FY22 as provided by the
company have been relied upon. We have relied upon publicly available data of M&M including
documents available on their website.

In addition to the above, we have had discussions with the Company officials on the past and current
business operatiens of the businesses concerned.

Further, we have had discussions with SRBC and SSPA (the Valuers) on such matters which we
believe are necessary or appropriate for the purpose of issuing the Fairness Opinion Report.

We assume no responsibility for the legal, tax, accounting or structuring matters inciuding, but not
limited to, legal or title concerns, Title to all subject business assets is assumed to be good and
marketable and we would urge the Company to carry out an independent assessment of the same
prior to entering into any transaction, after giving due weightage to the results of such assessment.

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information supplied or otherwise made available to us either in oral or written
form, discussed with or reviewed by or for us, or publicly available. We have been informed that all
information relevant for the purpose of issuing the Fairness Opinion Report has been disclosed to us
and we are not aware of any material information that has been omitted or that remains
undisclosed, This being so, no representation or warranty, express or implied, is or will be made, and
no responsibility or lability is or will be accepted by SBICAP and its affiliates, its directors,
employees, agenis or representatives, or in relation to, the accuracy or adequacy of infarmation,
contained in the Faimess Opinion Report or any other written or oral information made available to
any party or their advisors. We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the
issuance of this Fairness Opinion Report.

We have not conducted any evaluation of the solvency or fair value of the Company, under any laws
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or similar matters. In addition we have not assumed any
obligation to conduct any physical inspection of the properties or facilities of Two Wheeler Business
of MTWL We have assumed and relied upon the truth, accuracy and completeness of the
infarmation, data and financial terms provided to us or publicly available; we have assumed that the
same are not misleading and do not assume or accept any liability or responsibility for any
independent verification of such information or any independent technical valuation or appraisal of
any of the assets, operations or liabilities of Two Wheeler Business of MTWL.
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Our Fairness Cpinion Report does not factor overall economic environment risk and other risks and
is purely based on the information and representations provided to us. We have not assumed the
risk of any material adverse change having an impact on Two Wheeler Business of MTWL.

We express no view as to, and our Fairness Opinion Report does not address, the underlying
business decision of any company to effect the Proposed Business Transaction or the merits of the
Proposed Business Transaction nor does it constitute any kind of recommendation to any
shareholder or creditor of M&M as regards to the Proposed Business Transaction or any matter
related thersto. In addition, this Faimess Opinion Report does not address the fairness to, or any
other consideration of, the holders of any class of securities, creditors or other constituencies of
ME&M. Our Fairness Opinion Report, as set forth herein relates to fairness of the swap ratio for
issuance of MEM's own equity shares to the minarity shareholders of Mahindra Two Wheelers
Limited. We are not expressing any suggestion or opinion herein as to the price at which the shares
af M&M will trade following the announcement of consummation of the Proposed Business
Transaction or as to the prices at which the shares of M&M may be transacted.

Our Fairess Opinion Report is not and does not purport to be an appraisal or otherwise reflective of
the prices at which any business or securities actually could be ideally bought or sold by any party
and s not indicative of actual value or actual future results that might be achieved, which value may
be higher or lower than those indicated, and any investment decision shall not be based sclely on
this Fairness Opinion Report and the buyer shall carry out their own due diligence.

Our Fairness Opinion Report s not necessarily based on economic, market and other conditions as in
effect on the date of issuing this Fairness Opinion Report, and the information made available to us
as of. the date hereof. It should be understood that in case of any subsequent developments we do
not have any obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm this Fairness Opinion Report.

To the extent that the conclusions are based on projections, SBICAP expresses no opinion on the
achievability of those forecasts.

In the ordinary course of business, we and our affiliates may actively trade or hold securities of the
company that may be the subject matter of this transaction for our own account or for the account
of our customers and accordingly, may at any time hold long or short position in such securities. In
addition, we and our affiliates maintain relationships with M&M, MTWL and their respective
affiliates.

This Fairness Opinion Report is provided solely for the benefit of the Board of Directors of M&M and
shall not confer rights or remedies upen, any shareholder of M&M or any other person other g
the members of the Board of Directors of M&M or be used for any other purpose.
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This Fairness Opinion Report is only a free and fair opinion and does not constitute a commitment by
SBICAP to underwrite, subscribe for or place any securities or to extend or arrange credit or to
provide any other services.

Disputes, if any, regarding this Fairness Opinion Report will be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of India and the Courts in Mumbai, India shall have exclusive jurisdiction in
this regard.

On the basis of and subject to the foregoing, to the best of our knowledge and belief, it is our view
that, as of the date hereof, the proposed valuation is fair, from a financial point of view.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For 5Bl Capital Markets Limited

MName: :
Designation:  Vice President
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Disclaimer

This fairness opinion certificate [“Certificate” or “This certificate” or “this certificate”) contains proprietary and
confidential information regarding Mahindra and Mahindra Limited (“the Company”). This certificate is issued
for the exclusive use and benefit of the Company as per the Engagement letter dated November 18, 2016. This
certificate has been issued by 581 Capltal Markets Limited (“SBICAP”), on the basis of the information available
in the public domain and sources believed to be reliable and the information provided by the Company, Valuer
and for the purpose to facilitate the Company to comply with, if applicable, The SEBI Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Regulations 2015 as amended, {“Listing Regulations”) and it shall not be valid for any other purpose
or as at any othier date. This Certificate is issued by SBICAP in the capacity of an Independent merchant banker,
on the valuation of assets/shares of the Company done by S. R. Batfiboi & Co. LLP and 55PA & Co.

This certificate is issued by SBICAP without regard to specific objectives, suitability, financial situations and
needs of any particular person and does not constitute any recommendation, and should not be construed as
an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, purchase or subscribe 1o any securities mentioned therein.
Mothing in these materials 15 intended by SBICAP to be construed as legal, accounting, technical or tax advice.
Past performance is not a guide for future performance. Forward-looking statements are not predictions and
may be subject to change without notice. Actual results may differ materially from these forward-looking
statements due to various factors. This certificate has not been or may not be approved by any statutory of
regulatory authority in India or by any Stock Exchange in India. This certificate may nat be all inclusive and may
not contain all of the information that the recipient may consider material.

This certificate and information contained herein or any part of it does not constitute or purport to constitute
investment advice in publicly accessible media and shauld not be printed, repreduced, transmitted, sold,
distributed or published by the recipient without the prior written approval from SBICAP. The
distributing/taking/sending/dispatching/transmitting of this document in certain foreign jurisdictions may be
restricted by law, and persons into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about,
and observe, any such restrictions.

Meither SBICAP and its affiliates, nor its directors, employees, agents or representatives shall be liable for any
damages whether direct or indiredt, incidental, special ar consequential including lost revenue or lost profits
that may arise from or in connection with the uze of this document. This document may contain confidential,
proprietary and/or legally privileged information and it must be kept confidential by the recipient.

SBICAP has not carried out any due — diligence independently in verifying the accuracy or veracity of data
provided by the Company and/or Valuer and SBICAP assumes no liability for the accuracy, authenticity,
completeness or fairness of the data provided by the Company and/or Valuer. SBICAP has also assumed that
the business continues normally without any disruptions.

Meithar SBICAP nor State Bank of India or any of its associates, nor any of their respective Directors, officers,
employees, agents or advisors or affiliate af any such person or such persons make any expressed or implied
representation or warranty and no responsibility or liability is accepted by any of them and is expressly
disclaimed with respect to the accuracy, completeness, authenticity or reasonableness of the facts, aplnions,
estimates, forecasts, projections or other information set forth in this certificate, or the underlying
assumptions on which they are based and nothing contained herein s or shall be relied upon as a promise or
representation regarding the historic or current position or performance of the Company or any future events
or performance of the Company.
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This certificate may be divided into chapters & sub-sections only for the purpose of reading convenience. Any
partial reading of this certificate may lead to inferences, which may be at divergence with the conclusions and
opinions based on the entirety of this certificate.

The opinion of SBICAP ["Opinion®] under this Certificate is not intended to and does not constitute a
recommendation to any shareholders as to how such shareholder should vote or act in connection with the
proposed business transaction or any matter related therein. The opinion is not, nor should it be construed as
pur opining or certifying the compliance of the proposed business transaction with the provisions of any law
including company law, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues
arising thereon. SBICAP assumes no responsibility for updating or revising our opinion based on circumstances
or events occurring after the date hereof. SBICAP does not express any opinion as to the price at which shares
of the M&NM may trade at any time, including subseguent to the date of this opinion. In rendering the Opinion,
SBICAP has assumed, that the proposed business transaction will be implemented on the terms described in
thie business transfer agreement, without any waiver or modification of any material terms or conditions, and
that in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatary or third party approvals for the business transfer, no
delay, limitation, restriction or condition will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on the entities
under the proposed business transaction and / or its holding or subsidiaries or affiliates and their respective
sharehalders.

In the past, SBICAF may have provided, and may currently or in the future provide, investment banking
services to the entities under the proposed business transaction and [ or its helding or subsidiaries or affiliates
and their respective shareholders, for which services SBICAP has received or may receive customary fees. In
addition, in the ordinary course of their respective businesses, affiliates of S8ICAP may actively trade securities
of the entities under the proposed business transaction and [ or its holding or subsidiaries or affiliates and
their respective shareholders for their own accounts and for the accounts of their customers and, accordingly,
may at any time hold a position in such securities. SBICAP engagement and the opinicn expressed herein are
for the benefit of the Board of Directors of the entities under the proposed business transaction and for no
other purposes. Neither SBICAP, nor its affiliates, partners, directors, shareholders, managers, employees or
agents of any of them, makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the information and
documents provided to us, based on which the opinion has been issued. All such parties and entities expresshy
disclaim any and all liability for, or based on or relating to any such information contained therein.

This certificate is furnished on a strictly cenfidential basis and Is for the sole use of the person to whom it is
addressed. Neither this certificate, nor the information contained herein, may be reproduced or passed to any
person or used for any purpose other than stated above, without the prior written approval from SBICAP. By
accepting a copy of this certificate, the recipient accepts the terms of this Notice, which farms an integral part
of this certificate.
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EEFEMEMNCE THE MW"

DS AMALYST/RIT 710200617 March 8, 2017

The Company Sscretary

MAHINDRA & MAHINDIA LTD

Gateway Huilding Apollo Bunder Mumbal ,
Maharashtra 4000

Sir,

Wo are in eeorifit of Dvaft Schome Armangement between Mahinda Two Wheslen Linited and Mahindra &
Mahindra Limited anad their respective Sharehodders and Creditors filed as regaired under SER] Clreublar Ma
CIRACFDACMD /180015 dated November 30, 2015; SERQ wide ke ketter dated March 3, 2017, has [oter alia
given the folflowing commenst{ £} on the déraft scheme of mangement:

= “Company shall daly comply with varkous provisiens of the Clroulars™
Accordingly, based om aforesaid comment offered by SEB1, the company is herely advised:
+  Toduly comnply with various provisioss of the dirculars

I kight of ihe alxve, v hereby advise that we bave i adhversn cleservatioas with Hmdted referenoe o these
matiers havieg a bearing on listingfde-listing/confinuoes listng requirenents within the provizions of
Listieg Agresmenl, 3o as t enabls the comguny t= flle the scheme with Hon'ble Bigh Court/NCLT.

Further, pursuant to the above SEE| ciroulars, upon snction of the Scheme by the: Hon'b= Wigh Cowrt/MELT,
the listed cumpany sbal] subimit o the stock exchange the Dllowing:

= Copyof the ligh Courtapproved Scheme;

= Heaudtof wolleg by gharehalders fue spproving the Schemn;

*  ESmtement explaining changes, If any; and reasons for sach dhanges carmied out im the Approved
Echeme wis-divis the Dralt Scheme;

Cogry of e shuerwnition better isaued by all the Siock Exchanges where Conpany 18 listed.

Batus of comipliance with the Dbservation Letters of the stock

Thee application secklesg exemplion from Hale 19 2)(k) of SCRE, 1957, whorrver applicabde: aral
Cnmplaints Weport as per Ansewre |1 of this Clrculas.

Any other documentfdisclosure as minemed by the Exchange.

The Excharge reservet it right to withdraw (6 "Moo adverse observation” at asy stape iF the Information
subsmittedd to the Bechange b found to be incomplete § inoorrect / miseading f false or for any contravention
of Rules, Bye-lows asud Regulstions of the Hxchonge, Listing Agreement, Goidelises)Regulations issued by
statutory aathorities

FPlease note that the aforesaldd shservations doss not prechsde the Company from comglying with any other
requirements

Yours faizhfully,

g

Manager

S&P@3SE

SENSEX
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NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE NIFTY.
OF INDIA LIMITED

Siock of the nufion

el MSELIST/ 0543 March 10, 2007

The Company Secretary
Mahindes & Slahandrs Limited
Ciptewny Building

Apollo Bunder

Ciolaba

Mumbad — <00 001

Kiogd Attn: Mr, Naravan Shankar
Dear Sir,

Sub; Dbservation ketier for draft Scheme af Scheme of Arrangement beiween Mahindra
Two Wheelers Limited and Mabindra & Mabindea Limited

We are in recaipt of the draft scheme of arrangement betiveen Mahindra Two Wheelers Limired
gid Mahindrs & Mahbndrs Limited and their respective sharebolders & creditors filed by
Mahindm & Mahindra Limated on Janoary 12, 2017

Based on our letter reference no Relt, NSE/ALIST/04052 submitted 1o SEBI and pursuart 10
SED Circular Mo CIRCFINCMIVIGZ015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI has vide letrer
dated March 03, 2017, has given following cominenty

= T Compeary sholl duly compdy with variows provions of the Cirendar, ™

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including
undensking given in torms’ of reguistion 11 of SERI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we herehy
comvey our “No-objection” in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so s
10 enable the Company to file the drafi scheme with the Hon'ble High Count

Iowever, the Exchange reserves its rights to withdraw this No-objection approval at any stage
il the information submitied o the Exchange s found jo be incomplele’ incormecy’ misheading/
false or for iy comravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchanpe Listing
Agreement, Guidelines / Regulation issued by statutory suthoriites.

The validity of this “Observation Letier™ shall be six months from March 10, 2017, within
which the Scheme shall be submitted to the Hon"ble High Coun. Funher pursuant 1o the above
cited SEBI circular upon sanction of the Scheme by the Hon ble High Court. you shall subemit
1o NSE the following:

2 Copy of Scheme as approved by the High Coun;

b Hesult of voting by sharcholders for approving the Schemse,

€ Siatement explaining changes. if any. andl reasons for such changes carried out in the
:I Approved Scheme vis-f-vis the Diafi Scheme
Zb 4 Stmus of compliance with the Observation Letter's of the stock exchanges

Eegd. DWiaws Dachaps Plas P fa T, Slkond, Bpedy G Domgis. Baess B, Moy SO0 |, il
Ll Tl T ey Rl T Ll I R I Ll L o o ————
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@ s Wyl

e The applicaiion seeking exemption from Rule 1W2Hb) of SCRR, 1957, wherever
applicable, and

f Complaints Report as per Arnexune 11 of SERI Cireular Mo CIRCFDAUMDY 167201 3
dated MNovember 30, 2015

Yours faithfully,

Far N.lﬂnu.%ﬂt@el Exchange of India Lid.

sl r.j_:-v —
JlM
j;}_ﬂﬂurhlmgu

PS5 Checklist for all the Fusther Issoes s available an webgite of the exchange at the follewing
Lm,l_ 1 T R Wbl COME A LEs LA T e "|.1JIl.:._|!|_I_I'
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Annexure D

Mahindra

REF: NS SEC
#* February, 2017
The Secrelary,
BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejevbhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai 200001,

Dear Sir,

Ref: Complaints Report

Mghindra & Mahindra Ltd,
Marwricirn Towers

Dr. G M. Bhosgle Manrg, Warll,
Mambe 400 018 bnda

Tal: +81 22 24801441
Fax; «837 32 24975081

The Secretary,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
“Exchange Flaza’, 5 Floor, Listing Department,
Plat No.Cf 1. G Block Bandra-Karla Complex,
Bandra (East).

Mumbai 400051

Sub:  Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited and the Company and their
respective Sharcholders and Creditors (“the Scheme™)

This is in connection with application made by the Company under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding the proposed Scheme of
Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited and the Company and their respective
Sharcholders and Creditors {"the Scheme”) under sections 391 lo 394 read with sections 100 to 104 and
notified section 52 of the Companies Act. 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 1956

In accordance with the SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/ 16/ 2015 dated November 30, 2013, we hereby

submit the Complaints Report.

We request you to take the above on record,

Please acknowledge receipt of the same.

Thanking you.
Yours faithfully,

For MAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA LIMITED

Wk e~

¢

NARAYAN SHANKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Mahindra e

Manhindira Towers
Or. 3, M. Bhosake Marg, Work
Mot 400 D18 Inclia

Tel «817 22 24807441
Fax: -B1 22 24375081

Complaints Report: Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

(as on 6" February, 2017)
Part A
S | Particulars Number
No. |
1. Number of complaints received directly 1 |
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange NIL
3 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 1
4 Number of complaints resolved 1
3. Number of complaints pending NIL
Part B
| Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved/Pending)
L AAY KAY GLOBAL* 23 fanuary, 2017 Resolved*

* The complainant is a shareholder of the transferor company (unlisted entity) and the transferor
company has adequately replied to the complainant followed by a reply from the Company.

Date: 8 February, 2017
Place: Mumbai

For MAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA LIMITED

| 2 NARAYAN SHANKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

B1 &2 e300 P - 31 52 P09 SA
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Annexure E

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 27™ APRIL,
2017 AS PER THE PROVISION OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AT GALAXY CONFERENCE ROOM, 2"° FLOOR,
MAHINDRA TOWERS, P. K. KURNE CHOWK, WORLI, MUMBAI - 400 018.

The demerger of the Two Wheelers Business, inter alia, consisting of the entire undertaking, business, activities and operations
pertaining to the Two Wheelers Business (“Two Wheelers Undertaking”) of the Company (“MTWL" or “Company”) from MTWL to
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited (“Resulting Company” or “M&M") and its transfer as a going concern with effect from 1% October, 2016
or such other date as may be directed or approved by National Company Law Tribunal (“the Appointed Date"), as per the Scheme of
Arrangement between MTWL and M&M and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (“the Scheme”), was approved by the Board
of Directors vide Board Resolution dated 3 December, 2016.

Subsequent to the Meeting of the Board held on 3 December, 2016, the provisions of section 230 to section 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, governing power to compromise or make arrangements with creditors and members, merger and
amalgamation of companies have become operative with effect from 15" December, 2016. This report is submitted in pursuance
of the said provisions.

Considering the share exchange ratio of 1 (One) equity share of M&M (of INR 5/- each fully paid up) for every 461 (Four Hundred
and Sixty One) equity shares of MTWL (of INR 10/- each fully paid up) as recommended by Independent Valuers viz. M/s. S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP and M/s. SSPA & Co in their Joint Valuation Report, supported by a Fairness Opinion expressed by SBI Capital
Markets Limited and as approved by the Board of Directors, the effect of the Scheme would be as follows:

1. In consideration of the shares held by the Non Promoter shareholders in MTWL, such Non Promoter shareholders will
be allotted equity shares in M&M and such equity shares will form part of public shareholders of M&M.

2. In consideration of the shares held by Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd., the Promoter shareholder in MTWL,
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Ltd. will not be allotted equity shares in M&M, since the promoter shareholder is a
wholly owned subsidiary of M&M and as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, a subsidiary company cannot hold
shares in its holding company.

3. The Key Managerial Personnel (“KMPs") of MTWL do not hold any shares in MTWL, except for one share held by
Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited jointly with a KMP.

4. There would be a dilution to the extent of the shareholding in M&M held by the KMPs of MTWL, if any, on account of
issuance of shares by M&M to the non-promoter shareholders of MTWL.

5. Re-organisation of issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of MTWL by reducing face value and paid up
value of equity share capital of Rs. 10 each to Re. 0.02 each, of all shareholders of MTWL, which comprises of promoter
and non-promoter shareholders of MTWL.

As on the date of this Report, the Company has no other class of shareholders.

FOR MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

POONAM VAZE
Company Secretary
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Annexure E

REPORTADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAHINDRA & MAHINDRALIMITED ATITS MEETINGHELD ON 10™ FEBRUARY, 2017
AS PER THE PROVISION OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AT GATEWAY BUILDING, APOLLO BUNDER,
MUMBAI - 400 001.

The demerger of the Two Wheelers Business, inter alia, consisting of entire undertaking, business, activities and operations pertaining
to the Two Wheelers Business (“Two Wheelers Undertaking”) of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
("MTWL" or “Demerged Company”) from MTWL to the Company (“Resulting Company” or “the Company”) and its transfer as
a going concern with effect from 1% October, 2016 or such other date as may be directed or approved by National Company
Law Tribunal (“the Appointed Date"), as per the Scheme of Arrangement between MTWL and the Company and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors (“the Scheme"), was approved by the Board of Directors vide Board Resolution dated 3 December, 2016.

Subsequent to the last Meeting of the Board held on 3 December, 2016, provisions of section 230 to section 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, governing power to compromise or make arrangements with creditors and members, merger and
amalgamation of companies have become operative with effect from 15" December, 2016. This report is submitted in pursuance
of the said provisions.

Considering the share exchange ratio of 1 (One) equity share of the Company (of INR 5/- each fully paid up) for every 461 (Four
Hundred and Sixty One) equity shares of MTWL (of INR 10/- each fully paid up) as recommended by Independent Valuers viz. M/s.
S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP and M/s. SSPA & Co in their Joint Valuation Report, supported by a Fairness Opinion expressed by SBI Capital
Markets Limited and as approved by the Board of Directors and taking into account the fact that there will be no allotment of shares
to the Promoters or Key Managerial Personnel (“"KMP") of the Company, the effect of the scheme would be dilution in percentage
shareholding of Promoters and KMP and increase in the percentage shareholding of non-promoters, as a class, to the extent of issue
of shares to the shareholders of MTWL (other than Resulting Company and/or any subsidiary of Resulting Company).

As on the date of this Report, the Company has no other class of shareholders.

FOR MAHINDRA & MAHINDRA LIMITED

NARAYAN SHANKAR
Company Secretary
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Annexure F

Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

Charjered &g tasiin
ok, T Wi, Teh oo
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famruapat: Bagur
Pl - d18 TG
iy

Tat 31 RN 424 8800
Faa =4 [OFO) b SidF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT OM REVIEW OF SPECIAL PURPOSE
CONDENSED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Specal Purpose condensed financial statements
of MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Special Purpose Condensed Balance Shest as at December 31, 2016, the related
Special Purpose Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss, Special Purpose Statement of
Changes in Equity and Spedal Purpose Condensed Cash Flow Statement for the six
months ended December 31, 2016, and selected explanatory information,

The Special Purpose condensed financial statements, which Is the responsibility of the
Company’s Management and approved by the Board of Directors, has been prepared in
accordance with the recogniticn and measurement principles laid down in Indian
Accounting Standard ("Ind AST), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with relevant rules ssued thersunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to lssue & report on the Statement
based on our review.

2. We conducted our review of the Staterment In accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity’, ssusd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review s
limited primarily to inquiries of Company personngl and analytical procedures applied
to financial data and thus provides iess assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit and, sccordingly, we do not express an audit oplinion.

3. Basad on our review conducted as stated abowve, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to belleve that the accompanying Special Purpose condensed financial
statements, does not present fairy, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the
Company a5 at December 31, 2016 and of itz loss induding other comprehénsive
income, ts cash Mows and changes in equity for the perod then ended, In accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles in India.

\Iﬁ""
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

4, This report is belng issued for the specific purpose and wse by the Manageament and
Board of Directors for thelr intermal reviews and shoold not be used for any other
purpose without aur witten conzent.

For DELDOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration Mo, 117365W)

@
. L. Shah

Partner
(Membership No. 033590)

1+ Mumbal; January J5, 2017

\7
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Speecial Purpose Condensed Balance Sheet a3 a1 December 31, 2016

Rs. In Lacs,
Particulars As 01 December 31, 2016
Mote g- Spares Vehicles Total
ASSETS
Non-CUrment Ssets
(3] Property, Plant and Equipment 1 43,52 15,488,597 1553249
(0] Capital work-In-grogress . 155.48 155.49
lc) Other Intangible assets 2 . 2,073.48 207348
(d) Intangible assets under develooment . 268.75 268.75
(e} Financial Assets
(i} Loans 3 3366 386,24 419.90
() Others financial assets 4 - 317.95 317.95
(1) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 - - .
|ig) Other non-current assets & 162.14 5.954.45 6,136.59
Tatal Nen - Current Assets{ 259.32 18,645.33 28,904.65
Current assets
() Inwentories 7 1,121.22 5,173.77 5,204.99
o) Financlal Assets
{11 Investiments B . 73082 73082
{ii] Trade recebvables 9 3299 TTLE9 1,005.68
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 512 242.88 248,00
(] Loars 3a - 20.20 20,20
[w] Other financial assets 43 - 283 183
Jlc) Other current assets Ga 136.19 B,725.95 8,862.14
Taull:um.ﬂuuul 1,495 52 15,669, 24 17,164.76
Totl sasa|  aadiesT| 4606941
ECLITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2] Equity Share capital 11 - 299,838,592 199,838.92
(b} Other Equity 112 847.35] (270,887.19)) (#70,035. 84){
Total Equity attribustable 1o owners of the Company 847.35| 2895173 29,799.08
LIABILITIES
Mon-current labilities
{2} Prowigions 12 6a7 509.49 515.96
() Deferred tax Habilithes (Net) 3 - . -
Toital Mon - Current Liabilities| EA4T 509,49 515.96
Current Rabilities
|3) Financial Liabilities
{1} Trade payables 13
{a] Total Dutstanding dues of micros enterprises and small entenprises . a4z 4221
(b} Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micros emterprises 480.39 11,158.22 1163861
and small enterprises
() Other current financial Babilities 14 196,35 1,146.41 1,342.76
[b) Prowisions 12a 0000 1,029.03 1,060,073
[} Current Tax Liabdities [Met)
[d] Other current lkabiities 15 184,28 1,477 48 1,661.76
Total Current Liabilities] 90102 | 14,853.35 15,754.37
Total Equity and Lisbilities | L7sasal  44314.57 46,069.41
(See accompanying notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements
In verms of our report attached For and on behall of the Board
For Delottis Hasking & Sells
[~H. L. Shah Director
Partner
Oate: Th Al 25 2 "'@’
r [
Place: M BeT Director
\’/ A
\1 Chief Financial Officer
™ oate: 25°-0f- 261
PISCE: 1) L *
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Spacial Purpose Condenged Statement of Profit and Loss for the nine months period ended December 31, 2016
5. Im Lacs
Faar the ning manths pericd ended December |
Particulars Hote No. 31, 2016
Spanes Wiehiches Totsl
| fRewerue from operations 16 393102 24,174 64 2E,105. 66
Ll her Income 17 - 42731 43731
NI [Total Revenue {1+ 1] 393102 T4,601.95 I8.532.97
v 5
(Cont of matertals consyumed 15 73019 15,9848 .85 16,719.04
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 1399062 . 1,399.62
in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade {trading goods) 1Ea 146.15 5645 62 579177
Excise Duty on sake of goods AGT.A4 131164 2.779.08
rphoyes benefits expense 13 189,75 10,353. 76 1054351
AER CoNls 20 4951 1.0456.91 109642
and amorization expense 182 15.72 377999 3,795.71
Impairment expenseslosses - 553506 5.535.06
(Other expenses 21 £95.31 1165577 12251.08
[Total Expenses (1] 3.593.69 Sﬂ?.ﬂ !&ﬂl.?_ﬁ
¥ [Profit/(loss) before tax for the period (1 - IvV) i3r.33 li:l.?ujsq (31,378.32)]
W1 [Tax Expense
(1) Current tax
{2) Deferred tax
Total tan expense - - -
il siver tax for the period [V - V1) 1731 l;!LrLuS)J (31,378.32)|
comprehensioe Income
A (i) ems that will not be reclassified to profit or koss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit Habilities / (asset] 1.10 55,16 50,86
X [Total comprehensive intoms for the period 13843 7.
X per equity share [Noménal value per share Rs. 10 each), Not annualised
& Diduted (n RAs.) 6 {1.11)
See accompanying nates 1o the special purpose condensed financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behall of the Board
For Deloitte Hasking & Sells
Cha =]
Shah Director
Date: TANUARY 25, 201F "ﬁ
(o
\- (Chief Financial Dfficer
pate: 25 -0)- 2013
Pace:  Muwabau
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

Special Purpose Condensed Cash Flow Statement for the nine moths period ended December 31, 2016

oate: 25 .0[- 20|

Rs. In Lacs.
Particulars. Spares Vehices Total
Cash flows from cperating activities sm [22,162.17) 132.12?.1&]‘
Cash figws from imeesting activities (1.47) 9,416.67 9,415.20
Cash flows from financing activities {49.51) 12,B48.45 12,798.95
Met cash inflow / {outflow) [15.97) 102.96 B6.99
Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the period 21.09 139.92 161.01
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the period 5.12 2 24800
Notes :
1 Figures in brackets represent outflows of cash and cash equivalents.
2 Cash and cash eguivalents oo of :
As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Tatal
on hand 0.26 0.26
Balances with Banks 512 242.52 24774
Demand Deposits with Banks - - -
2 T 25000 ]
In terms of our niport attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Cha
Director
L Shah
Partner

Place: ®
b Munadoas
Efarewd d [ora Whessr [ s=med
fLinmrssr of (hamgun = sy W the pericd seoed [epesbes TL 1216
& Ll o [y
By & R
e
FEnrue S v sl Tzt
I o e g o o e : TRA R | T
apad ey S pares? (TR oL el NN N
gt e furreyg T el
'h ot the o of th perd AN | rwa
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 1 Property, Plant and Equipment Rs. In Lacs.
Description of Assets Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Total
Equipment Equipment Fixtures
1. Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April 2016 5,970.46 32,867.90 1,461.35 342.09 1,502.37 42,144.17
Additions 7.25 745.38 1.03 7.96 19.84 781.46
Disposals - 37.13 15.91 - 495.64 548.68
Closing Balance 5977.71 33,576.15 1,446.47 350.05 1,026.57 42,376.95
Il._ Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the period -
Balance as at 1st April 2016 1,361.03 12,476.20 1,165.11 163.17 336.49 15,502.00
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the period 139.26 2,133.91 102.08 23.22 105.19 2,503.66
On disposal of assets - 28.28 15.85 - 144.47 188.60
Impairment losses recognised earlier - 2,127.40 - - - 2,127.40
|Imgairment losses recognised during the current period 2,900.00 2,900.00
Closing Balance 1,500.29 19,609.23 1,251.34 186.39 297.21 22,844.46
Net block (I-I1) 4,477.42 13,966.92 195.13 163.66 729.36 19,532.49
Balance as at December 31, 2016 4,477.42 13,966.92 195.13 163.66 729.36 19,532.49
Balance as on 31st March 2016 4,609.43 18,264.30 296.24 178.92 1,165.88 24,514.77
Note - 1 Property, Plant and Equipment - Spares
Rs. In Lacs.
Description of Assets Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Total
Equipment Equipment Fixtures
1. Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April 2016 2.28 84.09 14.19 2.35 - 102.91
Additions - 147 - - - 1.47
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing Balance 2.28 85.56 14.19 2.35 - 104.38
[i1. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the period -
Balance as at 1st April 2016 1.15 34.67 7.83 1.49 - 45.14
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the period 1.01 11.86 2.79 0.06 - 15.72
Closing Balance 2.16 46.53 10.62 1.55 - 60.86
Net block (I-11) 0.12 39.03 3.57 0.80 - 43.52
Balance as at December 31, 2016 - Spares 0.12 39.03 3.57 0.80 - 43.52
Balance as on 31st March 2016 1.13 49.42 6.36 0.86 - 57.77
Note - 1 Property, Plant and Equipment - Vehicle
Rs. In Lacs.
Description of Assets Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Total
Equipment Equipment Fixtures
1. Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April 2016 5,968.18 32,783.81 1,447.16 339.74 1,502.37 42,041.26
Additions 7.25 743.91 1.03 7.96 19.84 779.99
Disposals - 37.13 1591 - 495.64 548.68
Closing Balance 5,975.43 33,490.59 1,432.28 347.70 1,026.57 42,272.57
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the quarter -
Balance as at 1st April 2016 1,359.88 12,441.53 1,157.28 161.68 336.49 15,456.86
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the period 138.25 2,122.05 99.29 23.16 105.19 2,487.94
On disposal of assets - 28.28 15.85 - 144.47 188.60
Impairment losses recognised during the current period - 2,900.00 - - 2,900.00
Impairment losses recognised earlier - 2,127.40 - - - 2,127.40
Closing Balance 1,498.13 19,562.70 1,240.72 184.84 297.21 22,783.60
Net block (I-11) 4,477.30 13,927.89 191.56 162.86 729.36 19,488.97
Balance as at December 31, 2016 - Vehicles 4,477.30 13,927.89 191.56 162.86 729.36 19,488.97
Balance as on 31st March 2016 4,608.30 18,214.88 289.88 178.06 1,165.88 24,457.00

i~ b
v

65



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

R, b Lars
Jlracina of et ——— P - 3 "
Krmahow Tagendiiure Labtwiare Randi
e BEm|  wmpgl wseiis
1S - = 63 A7
LEAL TS WosE|  wpwoo] ks |
By 5757 T BT
T :.T!?l!:ﬂ ana)
:.m-rl E - E1. 1.3
LF oot E T Taae R0 §
onn a7 18T
i i s Ena]
7
(7>
Note - 3 Non current loans | Unsecured, considered goods uniess othenwise stated]
Ra. iin Lacs
Particulars Az ot December 31, 2016
Spares Virhicles Total
Security Deposits EER IraT 40563
Loans tor employees 1427 1427
’% L i “_’ﬂ
Note - 3a Current Loans (Unsecured, considersd goods unless otherwise siated)
In Laes
Particulars As at December 11, 2016
Spares Vihides Total
Loans 1o employess 020 2020
Jois - 2 =20.33]

D

\
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Mahindra Two Wheslers Limited
Rates ta the speclal purpese condensed financial statoments

Naote - & Other non current financial aveets | Untecured, considered goods unlews stherwise stated)

R in Lacs
Az at December 31, 2006
g Spares Vihicies Tatal
Balange with Banks (under len] - 31785 317.95
Tots’ a3
Kate - 4a Dther current financlal assets | Unsecuned, considered goods unless othenwise stated]
Rs, bn Lacs
As @t Decemnber 31, 2018
= Spares | WVehicles Taotal
Interest Accrued but nat die on Fioed Deposit - 28 283
¥ Total] - i3
}:"/
1 g
Note - 5 Deffered Taxes
Rs. In Lacs
i Az at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
[ Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Habillties - B692.58 692.58
= 652.58 692.58
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets - 69258 622.58
- 692.58 692.58
Net Deffered Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) - = =
i

5%
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L
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 6 Other non-current assets | Unsecured, considered goods unless otherwise stated)

Rs. In Lacs
As at December 31, 2016
Particulars
Spares Vehicles Total

(a) Capital advances B 759.80 759.80
(b} Advance income tax . 62.28 b2.28
(c) VAT cradit receivable 182.14 3,516.01 3,688.15
(d) Lease prepayments - 1,506.25 1,506.25
(2} Others (Stamp duty paid under protest) - 110.11 11011
Total 182.14 5,954.45 6,136.59

MNote - 8a Other current assets | Unsecured, considered goods unless otherwise stated)
Rs. In Lacs

Fidtieuts As at December 31, 2016
rs
Spares Vehicles Total
(a) Lease prepayments - 2388 2388
(b} Balances with government authorities

(i) CENVAT credit receivable - 1,552.10 1,552.10
(ii} VAT credit receivable 6.98 134.66 141.64
{iii} Service Tax credit receivable 110.46 6,568.60 6,679.06
(c) Prepaid expenses 0.26 B6.03 B5.29
(d) Advance to Suppliers 18.49 356.88 37537
(&) Others - 3.80 3.80
Total 136.19 8,725.95 sgm
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Mote - 7 inventories

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
(a) Raw materials - 2,674.15 2.674.15
(b} Work-in-progress . 289.03 289.03
{c) Firiished goods : 1,702.82 1,702.82
{d) Spares for resale (Manufactured/Traded) 1,121.22 - 1,121.22
{e) Stores and spares - 507.77 507.77
e =Sl Y| = “Yotal]l 102122 s47377| 629499
|included above, goods-in-transit:
i) Rawmaterigls & 14567 14567
Total - 145.67 145.67
&
Note - 8 Current Investment Rs. In Lacs.
As at December 31, 2016
Particul
e Spares Vehicles Total
Investment - Mutual Fund
i} IDFC Mutual fund - Cash fund Growth Regular Plan 73092 73092
(37690.942 Units |
Total] - 730.92 730.92
le
S

e
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

Motes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 9 - Trade receivables

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Asg at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
Trade receivables
{a) Considered good 23299 77265 1,005.68
b} Doubtful 2058 446.81 457.39
253.57 1,219.50 1.473.07
Less: Allowance for Crodi Losses {20.58) 1446.81) (467.29)
Tatal| 232,99 772.69 | 1,005.68
[ I
%
o
MNote - 10 Cash and Bank Balances
Rs. In Lacs
Farticulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
(a) Cashin hand - 0.26 0.26
lib) Balances with banks
(i} In Current Account 312 132.04 137.16
(i) In EEFC accounts - 110.58 110.58
Total 512 242.88 248.00
>4
>
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b

Mahindra Two Whaelers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condemied financial =tatements

Naote - 11 - Shane Capital

Rs. In lacs
Asat Decemnber 31, 2018
Tatal
F.500,000,000 equity sharos-of Rs 104 each 350,000.00
350,040:0.00
[issued, Subscribed pnd Paid up:
2958 387 116 equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully palel wi 2590, 83E.92
ot 29833
|Reconciliation of the no. of shares outstanding at the beginning and at tha end of the period: As at Decemnber 31, 2016
Tatal
Amournt in s o, of shares
N of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 265, 83592 2 658,385,216
Add: Additional equity shares Bsved during the pericd 24,000.00 240,000,000
Lirss: Equity Shares forfeited/Bought back during the period
Iﬂodﬂtﬂvmmhmwdhuﬂ 299,838.52 2,098,389, 215 |
Mot
[} Murnber of shares held by sach shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company are as follows:
[Particutars As at Decernber 31, 2016
Number of shares % Shareholding
Sharey:
Mahindra Velvicke Manulacturing Limited 2,766,057,344 92.25
[Mahinden & Mahindra Limited - .
[Aay Kay Global 113 575,006 7.12

i} The Company has only one class of Share Le. Equity Shares having par value of 85,10 each. Each holder of Equity Share is entitied to one vote per Share. irg
&mwwawmmmmmmmﬂumﬂ Lo recehs remakning assets, after deducting all it's labdlities, inf

1o the number of Equity Share heid

s

\r
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the specisl purpote condensed fnancial statements

Naote 11s - Other equity

[} Componentof other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Changes to OCI, (as part of retained erarnings in statement of changes in equity) is shown baelow :

Rs. In Lacs
Az at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
1(:1 Securities premium account:
Balance at April 1, 2016 520.54 92054
Less: Utllised on account of Share issue costs (34,5000 I34.50!|
Closing Balance - B86.04 886.04
|(b] General reserve
Balance at April 1, 2016 508.92
Add :
Profit [ foss for the period 337.33
Closing Balance B46.25
TOTAL (a) B46.25

Rs. In Lacs
As at December 31, 2016
Eatiotans Spares Vehices |  Total
Balance at April 1, 2016 - {298.76) {298.76)
Add :
Other comprehenshve income for the period 1.10 59.76 6086
Closing Balance
rormel sl sl _ gssso)
Total Other Equity (a+b]] 847.35 | (2rogs7.a9)|  (270,039.89)]

12
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Motes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 12 Non Current Provisions

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
4[:] Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences G6.47 35297 35944
|(b) Other Provisions
Warranty - 131.97 131.97
Free ServiceCouwpons =~~~ S __2455) 2455
Tatal £.47 509.49 515.96
- - — el cemmamap— i) iy
MNote - 12a Current Provisions
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
{(a) Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated abisences 2.9 125.056 127.35
Provision for Gratulty 1.86 101.40 103.26
|(b) Other Provisions
Warranty - 416.37 A16:37
Free Service Coupons - 192.74 192.74
Other Provisions for Potential Statutory Liabilities I 35.85 193.45 229.31
l.l\ Total] 40.00 1,029.03 1,069.03
Note - 13 Trade Payables
Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
- Total cutstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises - 42.21 42.21
- Total cutstanding dues of other than Micro and small enterprises
Acceptances - 545.05 545.05
Others 43035 10,613.17 11,093.56
Shas = ~ Total 48039 | 1120043 | 1168082

=
g N
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Mahindra Two Wheslers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 14 Other Current Financial Liabilities

N

W

Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Tatal
{a} Trade/Security Deposits 196.35 81822 1,014.57
(b} Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment . 328.19 328.19
Total] 196.35 Llﬁ.jé 1 i
Mete - 15 Other Current Liabilithes
R, b Lacs
Particuiars As at December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
Advances received from custamers 15436 B857.36 1,011.72
Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes) 28.71 554.15 582.86
- Employee Recoveries and Employer Contributions 1.21 65.97 67.18
Total| 184.28 1,477.48 166176
|
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Mahindra Two Wheslers Limited

MNotes to the special purpose condensed financial statemants

Mote - 16 Revenue from Operations

Rs. in Lacs
For the period ended December 31, 2016
Particulars
Spares Vehicles Total
{a}. Revenue from sale of products 3.824.59 23.918.96 27,843.55
{b) Other operating income 6.43 255.68 26211
Total) 3,931.02 24,174.64 28,105.66
Other operating revenues comprise:
Sale of scrap 6.43 71.59 T8.02
- Duty drawback and other export incentives . 184.09 184.05
E}’ Total 5.43 255.68 262.11
Goe
Note - 17 Other Income
Rs. In Lacs
; For the period ended December 31, 2016
Particulars -
Spares Vehicles Total
{g) Interest Income on bank deposits BOSS 80.55
(b} Royalty Z61.18 261.18
{c) Gain on sale of current investments - 85.58 85.58
{d} Miscellaneous Income - - =
i€ Total| = 427.31 427.31
Q‘a*?

\
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k

Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
MNotes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Mote - 18 Cost of materials consumed

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars For the period ended December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
Opening stock - 3,408.39 3,408.39
Add: Purchases 730.19 15,762.38 16,492.57
Less: Closing stock - 3,181.92 3,181.592
Cost of materials consumed 730.19 15,988.85 16,719.04
Materials consumed comprise:
Raw material 599.67 15,766.50 16,366.17
Other items 130.52 22235 352.87
Total| 730.18 15,988.85 16,719.04
i
Mote - 18a Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars For the period ended December 31, 2016
Spares Vehicles Total
Inventories at the end of the year;
Finished goods - 1,702.82 1,702.82
Work-in-progress = 289.03 289.03
Stock-in-trade 1,121.27 - 1,121.22
1,121.22 1,991.85 3,113.07
I ries. inni he year
Finished goods - 7.264.27 7,264.27
Work-in-progress = 373.20 37320
Stock-in-trade 1,267.37 - 1,267.37
1,267.37 7,637.47 8,904.84
Net (increase} [ decrease] 146.15 5,645.62 5,791.77

/e

\
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statements

Note - 19 Employes Benefits Expense

Rs. In Lacs
For the period ended December 31, 2016
Particulars
Spares Vehictes Total
{a) Salaries and wages, including bonus * 162.50 5.724.91 5887.71
Less: Salary capitalised - 170.00 170.00
162.80 5,554.91 5,717.71
{b) Amont paid towards voluntary retirement scheme . 4,045.25 4,045.25
{t) Contribution to provident and other funds 18.92 473.21 49813
{d] Staff welfare expenses &.04 274.38 282.42
l Total] 189.75 10,353.76 10,543.51
1
S
Mote - 20 Finance Cost
Rs. In Lacs
5 For the period ended December 31, 2016
s i Spares Vehicles Total
fa) Interest expense
{1} Interest on Fixed Loans - T8.52 78.52
(2} Interest on loans from related parties - 16.41 16.41
3] Cther interest expense 49.51 904.73 954,24
45.51 999.66 1,049.17
{b) Other barrowing cost . 47.25% 47.25
'E 8 Total 49.51 1,046.91 1,096.42
(1~
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the special purpose condensed financial statemants

Note - 21 Other Expanses

Rs. In Lacs.
For the period ended Decernber 31, 2016
P Spares Vehicles Total

Stores condumed 537 5588 61.25
Processing & Machining charges 255 29188 8443
Cost of Senvions - Deputation Charges, Soltware Senvice, Business Suppan Sendos, #tc 22481 85794 108275
Power & Fuel 205 233.72 5797
Freight and handling charges 21667 17299 369,86
Repairs and maintenance
= Buildings - 2.82 282
= Machinery oaT 111.03 112,00
- Cthers L1y 13349 122 66
Rent incheding lease rentals 53.49 G614.37 ELT.BE
Royalty = 350.00 350.00
Rates and taees 186 55.24 E8.10
Insurance 126 12363 11589
Provision Tor doubtlul debts and advances 1371 Ti2i B5.52
Bad Debes Written off - 082 0.4z
Warranty Expenses and Free Service Charges (Net of Recoveries) - 45289 48289
Advertisement, Promotion & Seiling Expentes - 412876 4,128.76
Excise duties
- relating to changes i inventories of Tinished goods (21534 [191.57) {113.50]]
- Others 153 (438.85) (416,93
Loss on sale of Non Corrent imestments B 52258 B2298
Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket sxpenses 163 3153 3316
Stamp duty.registration charges : 0.09 o0s
Logs an Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 11238 11238
Asset Written off - 220694 1,206.54
Other exponses B7.67 161451 168218

Total) 59531 11.655.79 12,251.08

\

Fs
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#2. Corporate Information

Mahindra Two Wheelers Ltd. (MTWL) is subsidiary of Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited {w.e.f 17th
February 2016). MTWL is engaged in the business of manufacturing & selling motorized two wheeler
vehicles.

MTWL has a manufacturing plant located at Pithampur near Indore and an assembly unit at SUPA near
Ahemadnagar, MTWL also has R&D center at Chinchwad, Pune,

23. Basis of preparation, presentation and purpose of these financial statements

These Special Purpose Condensed Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period
and in accordance with measurement and recognition principles in the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as "Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The accounting policies followed in preparation of these Special
Purpose Condensed Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Special
Purpose Condensed Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2016. In the opinion of the
management, all adjustments which are necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

The Special Purpose Condensed Financial Statements includes presentation of amount pertaining to Two
Wheelers Undertaking (Vehicles) and Remaining Business (spares), which have been segregated considering
specific assets and liabilities identified to the respective business and interchangeable assets and liabilities
allocated on the following basis -

- Cash and Cash equivalents: Based on the specific designated bank accounts identified by the
Management.

- Employee Benefits: In proportionate of the salary cost of the employee identified to the respective
business.

- VAT liabilities, VAT input credits: In proportionate of the cost of goods seld of the respective business.
-  Eguity share capital has been identified as funding for the Vehicle Business.

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the nine months period ended
December 31, 2016, solely for use by the management and the Board of Directors for their internal reviews.
Accordingly, comparative figures are not given and the disclosures \ presentations are made only to the
extent as required by the management.

First-time adoption of Ind AS:

These special purpose condensed financlal statements, for the nine months ended December 31, 2015, are
the first the Company has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ({Indian GAAP). In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This
note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial
statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01, 2015.

o
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Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited
Notes to the Special Purpose Condensed Financial Statements

Exceptions from full retrospective application:
The Company has applied the following mandatory exceptions from retrospective application of Ind AS:

= De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities exception - Financial assets and liabilities de-
recognized before transition date are not re-recognized under Ind AS.

= [Estimates exception - On an assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial
statements of the respective Company entities, the Company has concluded that there is no
necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence that those
estimates were in error. However, estimates, that were required under Ind AS but not required
under Previous GAAP, are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates, reflecting
conditions existing as at that date without using any hindsight.

e The remaining mandatory exceptions either do not apply or are not relevant to the Company.

24. Scheme of Arrangement

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on December 3, 2016, approved the Scheme of
Arrangement between the Company and Mahindra & Mahindra Limited ("the Resulting Company”) and their
respective Shareholders and Creditors {“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Two Wheelers Business, inter alia,
consisting of entire undertaking, business, activities and operations pertaining to the Two Wheelers Business
{"Demerged Undertaking”) of the Company and its transfer as a going concern to the Resulting Company
with effect from 1st October, 2016 or such other date as may be directed or approved by the High Court
{“the Appointed Date”), in consideration of allotment of 1 (One) Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs.5 each fully
paid-up of the Resulting Company to the shareholders of the Company for every 461 {Four Hundred Sixty
One|) equity shares fully paid-up held by them in the Company, based on an independent joint valuation
report. Fractional entitlements to be rounded-off to the next higher whole number.

Further in terms of the Scheme, the aggregate of balance in Profit and Loss Account as at 30th September,
2016 and the additional amount debited to Reserves {Balance in Profit and Loss Account), if any, arising due
to excess of assets over liabilities transferred under the Scheme is to be written off against the Securities
Premium Account and the Share Capital of the Company, resulting in reduction of Securities Premium
Account, as on close of business hours on 30th September 2016, aggregating Rs.741.73 Lakhs and reduction
of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company by Rs. 299,239.24 Lakhs being effect of reduction in face
value and paid-up value of each equity share from Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) to Rs.0.02 (Two Paisa only) per
share.

The Company has submitted the scheme with stock exchange and is in the process of taking necessary steps
for obtaining the requisite approvals (shareholders\creditors\authorities \Honorable High Court \ National
Company Law Tribunal) as may be required for implementation of the scheme, pending which no
adjustments thereof has been made in these financial statement.

During the period ended 31% December, 2016, the company has disposed off investment in Mahindra Two
Wheelers Europe holding S.a.r.l - Luxembourg for Rs. 19,656 Lacs and accordingly loss amounting to Rs.
622.98 lakhs has been accounted for in the books of account.

"4
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26,

27.

28.

Mahindra Twe Wheelers Limited
MNotes to the Special Purpose Condensed Financial Statements

Earnings per share (EPS)

i ) - {Rs. In Lacs)
[ Particulars - " | For The Nine Months Period
i Ended December 31, 2016
Met Profit / (Loss) after Tax (31,378.32)
Weighted average number of equity shares (Basic and Diluted) 2,817,821,943 |
Face value per share 10
Basic and diluted Earnings per Share i (1.11)
Contingent Liabilities
{Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at December 31, 2016
stamp Duty paid under protest* 110.01
Excise and Service Tax Matters* 7,235.85
Total ) Sl 7,345.86

* relates to vehicle business.

During the current period the Company has continued to incur losses and as at the period end its net-worth
is substantially eroded with the accumulated losses aggregating to Rs 270,687.98 Lacs. However, the Company
is able to operate uninterruptedly with the continued support from the shareholders with infusion of funds
(equity and borrowings). Further considering the proposed scheme of arrangement as discussed in para 24
above and based on the future business plans and the turnaround strategy adopted for the continuing
business, in the opinion of the management, the Company will be able to generate profits in the future in

keumss of its accumulated losses and continue to operate as a going concern.

%

Q;f ; For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ector «—_";@/Jp

Director l. a

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 54k Jau. 25;?_,



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Annexure F

LI
T """I
1 LT
N AT LARE T
iy P ey g i A1 A
e dipk @ P 0 BT
e Faugln Bamhi 1 LYW
UG e Raka Lk et LA
F o ST
T inevsieenin L] v
(] Liowem L] LE R
(] S T i i i o
i in Ay (e il §1
Rt s e ] gty [} iﬁi
CLRREWT ARAFFE
I R ¥ F R
i s
I e . I
g Tiade Neciambing i T 4%
] Can* arsd Sk Cprawerniy L] LIFR L
iw] O Baew Satarves (] (R
i L Fl A
o] U Feae i Siae £l Lo
ol T R daith L] [ 5l ]
TOTAL ASBETE
B ECANTY AMD LA ITHN

BRIy
Fopaty Uhidern gt b L]
ORI EENT LA IS
T wriond Limi lrw
11 iy 1w Tk W
o} T P rpiliiars o] 718
Wi O PPE S |, il i1 mn

L] T M
Dofarvwd T s Lucilizan Wi s
Ciir hor-aarmeni Lisidiies i Ei
SRR LR
IV b | oo

w LR
(i Vil Pyl L B
) Bt alia | el e R b ]
e s " 45T LB
Ciorern Tas o snaimss e, L 1E
Cfwr Caarert Lt 1w
TOTaL DEanlY ddafn kPl T §
Pace Vorim
Dt & S 2317

w-me

82



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Bhghimain & Mafsrbia bl
Sastanasters Astepeting Piytemerny toe o Mien spute sevied 14 Dusserber, 3998 fivaudiin]
Mgt ol Pof gad | M bed T W= meoeite aroial T Deversber, 7014

M ...1
Hiza Sbata
EEE|
1 D,
e . ., S
Faywrm o oo E HhoE R
o .
Trinl by
o o mlwewi cormoed 1 TLAGT B2
Purranses o fock-r-me T
Crangen = rverrey o avted gl it s oigiei d FEOh e hil L]
Eommn iy o I:.ﬂl:
T L
iu-p:“ g Em— -+ et
Lyt i) i p e e - il
e e e e T e
Tl [ dpuestian
Boul tmivah nni ojdusad nesm aed Lis kivim
Tasonsa ama w ._._ﬂ.ﬂ..
Frcli bafcrs las
Tux Eparms:
Carms Tan Ll

L L il b e (e

g Pt il A e ARCpCler Y e o

i of B e bl |
& gy
I kel i R W mall v e |l 'k e sk

Tt Pl Wy Le Aached mpmdd o0 an
4 OwEs wwrurwem Frough s corareR e e
En  [Feien porion of pern wed e desgrmee pretion of befjey et g @ Bae Segs

—

T

am

am

iy

L]

e e el Bl T ﬂ
—t

ol Cihwr o praforegien by e o Pre i)

Fripl Lyrrpewisyion beioarm ke P gk

83



MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

e g ey ety e M e e PaTTT—
awt Py Bianara e e ihe b FRONETSE Bveted 5 Dud ey, S50
Y]
(TR,
i
ZLPerree biid
5 EARM PLOW RO ORENATRSS ACTAITES T
B AN FLOW FROW WEETING ACTRETIER T
C A PLOW FOU Pl ACTITER e
R T ICHEASEROECREASEY M EASH ARG CASH DELPALENTY )
ki AN C S § DOLEALEWTE.
P —— Bz 1
Ui giiieard of marwe of By Sowrem

oL i

P 1 L e D g ST
L aawil Zand Lgpemmurin oy puy Dubarcn Thew W7
il edai

L
T el T Eojamiten ah ot et ¥ e ﬂ

Ton M N M i

st vy 4
i b

ahindra & Mahindra Limited
Supplemantary Acccunting Statements for the Kine months ended 31 December, 3018 {Linauded)

Stmement of Changes in Equity for the Kine montha ended 31 December, 2016

R erores
Yoar Ended
31 Deceenber,
016
A) Equity Share Capital
nsued and Subscribed :
Eslance a3 81 b beginning of the perod 31055
A
Srares Baued o ESOP Tl .
Balance oS of the and of the period 055
Less -
Bt lssued b ES0P Trust bul not aloted o Employees 1393
Adusbid lssubd 093 Subschited Shang Captal 7663
[Rater Nota 11 for addisonsl inkormation.
€) Other Eouity Rea. erees
Feserns dnd Surphus Tharres. o Cithr Comprahana e Ineome
Securibes Dedt instrumants | Equity instrument |  Effective
Capial Fremium Ganaal Retained wrough Cer | through Other | portion of Total
Beserve Roserca | OMOrREINNOT  ppnags | Comprenensive | Compeahensis | Caah Flow
e Insorms Hisdgas
s at 1 Apl 2016 10,13 23302 1,730.38 14500 0468 06 [TE=| FETY 22,128.83 |
iProfil for the percd 373049 BN &
‘Other Comprehensive Income for he period [ ¥l w'l ;g.'l?'_l [l A5 |
Toried Comprehanshee Ncorss for th paficd - . = - AIETO [T 0T [F-] 32515
[Divickend inchuding tax thereon - TRRET [841,11)
Shiane based payTrant fxpenss 80,15
|Employes Stock Opons exercsed 3
Transfer 10 Ganecal Fesan:a on socount of
empicyoe stock optons lapsed -
Shared win ES0P Trust i)
A 6t 31 Decombar 2016 (1] _EW_ [__FiEaz]
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Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Supplementary Accounting Statements for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 (Unaudited)
HNotes to Accounts
Rs. crores
As at
31 Dacembear,
2016
1 Property, Flant and Equipment
Land - Fraehald 261.68
Buidings 1,236.23
Plan and Equipment 4,554,51
Office Equipment 373
Furmiture and Fixtues 68,40
Aarcrall T8.03
Vehicles 171.54
6401,
2 Other Intangible Assets
Development Expenditure 1.164.80
Computer Softwane 24,80
Others 128,84
1%1&.‘24
3A  Non Current Investments
Investments in Subsidianes, Asociates and Joint Ventures. 12,7741
Other investments B.T2
15783.43
1B Current Investments
Investments in Equity instruments 0.0
Inrvestments in Govemment Securities 183
Imvestments in Debenlures/Bonds 240064
Investments in Mutual Funds 1,196.77
Investments in Certificate of Deposits ZELoT
Investments in Commercial Papers 22045
Investments in Corporate Fied Deposits 20617
—————
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Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Supplementary Accounting Staternents for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 (Unaudited)

Notes to Accounts

10

Loans

a) Security Deposits

- Sacured, considerad good

- Unsecured, congidered good
= Doubitful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful deposits

b) Loans to related parties
= Secured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered good
= Doubitful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful leans

C) Other Loans

- Secured, considered good

- Unsecured, considerad good
= Doubthd

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtiul leans

Other financlal assets

Saecurity deposit

Imerest accured on irvestments, loans and advances
Derivative financial assets

Other financial assets.

Other financial assets includes sale proceeds of mutual fund receivable,

COthers Assets (non-financial)

Capital advances

Orther advances
Balances with governmaent authorities (other than income taxes)
Security deposits
Ciihers

Inventories

Raw materials and bought-out components
Work-in-Progress

Finished products produced
Stock-in-Trade

Manufactured components

Stores and spares

Tools

Trade Recehwables (Current)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months frem the date they are due for payment:
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtul

Less | Allowance for bad and doubtiul trade receivables

Others - Unsecured, considered good

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

= On Cument Accounts

= Fixed Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months

Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash on hand

Other Bank Balances

Earmarked balances with banks
Balances with Banks on Margin Accounts
Fixed Deposits with banks

86

Rs. crores

As at
31 Decoember, 2015

Current Non- Current

10.58 4,06

10.59 4.06
10.58 .06
507.82 1.218.67
4.59 10.00
51241 1.228.67
_ 459 10,00
507.82 1,218.67
11.02 145.01
T.34 .
18.356 145.01
7.3 -
11.02 145.01
5219.43 1,367.74
Currant Non- Current
17.681 35.80
165.74 -
7.55 -
B17.92 2540
1!Dﬂ!.$2 61.30
Currant Non- Current
- 496 46
raar 953.08
- 474
458.53 55047
B30.60 2.006.80
Currant
81562
11183
1,050.74
470,83
8B 71
64,81
43.78
A
Current
178,06
51.20
22926
51.20
178.06
2,513.51

2,691.67

21423
370.08
584.29
2769

0.18

81217

1793
8.1z
1,325.00

1,361.085
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Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Supplementary Accounting Statements for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 [Unawdited)
Notes to Accounts
Rs. crores
As at
11 Equity Share Capital 3 December, 2016
Authorised @
1,20,00,00,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each B00.00
25,00,000 Unclassified Shares of Ra 100 each 25.00
525.00
Issued and Subscribed :
62,10,52 384 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs, 5 each fully paid up 31055
Less :
2,78.26 380 issued to ES0OP Trust but not allotied 1o employess 1382
Adjusted : Issued and Subscribed Share Capital 20663
(A} Reconciiation of number of Ordinary (Equity) Shares and amaunt outstanding :
As a@1 December, 2018
MNo. of shares R=. Groms
Issued and Subscribed :
Balance as at the beginning of the year 62,10,92,364 3055
Add :
Shares issved bo ESOP Trust = =
Balance as at the end of the year 62,10,92 364 310,55
Less :
Shares issued to ESOP Trust bul nol allotbed to Employses 2,78.35,380 13,92
Adjusted : lssued and Subscrbed Share Capital 58, 32,58,004 206,63
(B) The Ordinary (Equity) Shares of the Company rank par-passy in all respects including voling rights and entitierment 1o dividend,
(C) Details of Ordinary (Equity) Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shanes in the Comparry :
As at 11 December, 2018
Mame of the Shareholder Ho. of %
shares sharehelding
[i} Lite lnsurance Corporation of India B,a7,75,497 " 1027
(M) Prudential Management and Services Pyt Lid. 707 80,970 11,38
(W) M&M Benefit Trust 5,18,35.214 8.35
()  The Bank of New Yark Mellon (for GDR holders) 3,34 50,034 5.39

(O} Issued and Subscribed Share Cagital includes an aggregate of 40,847 Crdinary (Equity) Shares of Rs. 5 each allotted as fully paid-up pursuant o
Schemes of Arangement withoul payment having been recsived in cash, for a period of five years immediately preceding the end of the financial
year 2015186,

12 Reserves
Description of the nature and purpose of Reserves

Capdtal Reserve : The Company was entitled 1o refund of Ociroi based on Octrod refund scheme. The resullant refund was credited to Capital Resenve.
Sacunties Pramium Account | The Securities Pramium is creabed on issue of shares ol a prémium,

General regane | The general resene comprises transler of profits from relained earmings for appropriation purposes, There is no policy of regular
transfer, hams incuded under General Resane shall nol be reclassified back inbo the profit or loss,

Debenture Redemption Resarve ;| Debenture Redempton Reserve |s & Statulony Reserve (as per Companies Act. 2013) created out of profits of the
Company available for payment of dividend for the purposa of redemaption of Debentures issued by the Company. On completion of redemaepticon, the
resenve is transferred io Retained Eamings.

Emplayes Stock Opfions Outstanding : The Employse Stock Options Outstanding represents reserve in resped of equity setlied share oplions granted o
the employees of the Company and group companies, in pursuance of the Employse Stock Dplion Plan,

Rs. crores
Hine Months ended
31 December, 2016
Other Reserves
{a) Debenture Redemplicn Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the pericd 7.50
Addition ! delelion dwing the pedod -
Balance as ab the and of the perod 7.50
[b) Employes Stock Oplions Outstanding
Balance as af the beginning of the period 137,50
Share based payment expense (including employee slock options 1o employees of group companies) 5815
Transfer 1o Securities Fremiurm sccounl on exercise of employes slock oplions (18.78)
Trasfer to General Reserve on account of employes stock oplions lapsed durng the perod Ig‘.’?i
Balance as at the end of the period
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MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Supplementary Accounting Statemants for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 (Unaudited)

Motes to Accounts

Rs. crores
As at
3 December, 2016
13  Hon-Current Borrowings
Debentures G73.50
Tam Loan From Banks 356.30
Dedfered payment liabdities 815.71
—

14 Trade Payables

Current Hon Current

Acceptances 606,78
Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises 20,87 -
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enlerprises 5,602 BO 215
B,320.64 215
15 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 115.81
Other long tenm lEabilites 3866
Derivative financial liabiities 875
Financial guaranes contracts 60,50
.81
18 Provisions
Current Non- Current
Employes benefits 108,37 ~ GOBST
Warranty 219.27 201.37
Oihers 108,04 24.92
43768 734,80

17 Other Hon-Financial Liabilities
Current Maon- Currgnt

Advances received from customaens 220.20 84,13
Statutory duss
= Taxés payable (other than income taxes) 628.12
- Employes recoveries and employer contribuions 6041 -
Gratuity payabie 54.56 18060
Others 248 25568
965.08 500,41
18 Short Term Borrowings
Secured:
Loan repayable on demand 0.45
0.45
Unsecured @

Term loan from banks

19  Other Current Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long-tenrm debt 81.31
Interest accrued and due on bormowings 50.02
Unclaimed dividands 17.93
Unclaimed matured deposits and inerest accred thenson 1.78
Financial Guaraniees 11.44
Other liabilities 143,81
306.2
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MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Supplementary Accounting Statements for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 (Unaudited)

Notes to Accounts

20 Revenue from Operations
Sale of products
Rendering of Services
Gross Revenue from Sale of Products and Sendces
Ciher operating revenue
(i) Serap Sales
iy Govemment Grant and Incantives (including export benefits)
(i) Cahers

2 Other inconme
Interest Income
- On Financial Astets at Amortised Cost
= On Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Dividend Income:
= Dividend on financial instruments classified as equity
= Mutual fund and other invesiments
Rental incoma
- Oparating lease rental income
Net Gain ! {Loss) on sale of Cumrent investments
Profit on sale of capital assets (net)
Other Non cperating incomea

22 Cost of materials consumed

Opeaning stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

23 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods produced
Work-in-progress

Stock-in-trade

Manufactured Components

Addiless) - Stock Transfer on sccount of transfer of Agr Business
Stock-in-Trade

Less: Inventories at the end of the period:
Finished goods Produced

Work-in-progress

Stock-in-trade

Manufactured Componants

Net (increase) I decrease In Inventory

24 Employes Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, etc.
Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee stock compensation expense
Waedfare

25 Finance Cost
Interest expense
Less | Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets.

Other bomowing cost
26 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Armortisation on other Intangible Assets

89

Rs. crores

Nine Months ended
31 December, 2016

34,258,112
337.88
34,684.10

63.00
270.25
15716

35,084.51

198.44
ez

599,36
47.38

10.62
2167
24.99
100.31

738.57
15,774.07
16,512.64

815.62

15,697.02

1,108.81
85.53
54347
110.54
1,858.35

(55.43)
179892

1.050.74
11163
4T0.83

1.731.91
67.01

1,590.89
160,28
90,98
1581.78
1.8093.71

8390
3026
5384
47.41
101.08

T09.39
27527




MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Supplementary Accounting Statements for the Nine months ended 31 December, 2016 (Unaudited)

Naotes to Accounts
Rs. crores
Nine Months endad
31 December, 20168
27 Other Exponses
Advertisements ar.5e
Freight outward and Delivary Charges. BEZ,04
Stores, Tools, Power and Fuel Consumed 288.21
Repairs and Maintenance 25743
Sales promotion expensas 225,47
Legal and Professional Charges 30512
Hire and Service Charges 3194
Warranty expenses 244,02
Miscellanecus Expense 580.27
D
28 Exceptional items
Profit on sale of cenain non-curment investmeants 353,78
Profit on transfer of business o a subsidiary 1,00
- &%
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MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Telephone No.: +91 2224931441, 24961441, FAX: +91 22 24983696
CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL AT MUMBAI BENCH
Company Scheme Application No. 351 of 2017

In the matter of Companies Act, 2013;

AND
In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and including any statutory
modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof and corresponding provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent as may be applicable;

AND
In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Mahindra Two Wheelers
Limited having CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462 (‘Demerged Company’) and
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited having CIN: L65990MH1945PLC004558 (‘Resulting
Company’) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED
(CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462)
A Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered Office at

Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018. - Applicant Company

FORM OF PROXY

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
1. Name: E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature: , or failing him
2. Name: E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature: , or failing him
3. Name: E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders convened pursuant to
direction of National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench to be held on Tuesday, 13* June, 2017 at 9 A.M. at Ground Floor, Gateway Building,
Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001 and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit approving
with or without modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement as detailed in the Notice of such meeting and to vote, for me/us and in my/our
name(s) (here, if for, insert ‘FOR’, or if against, insert 'AGAINST’) the arrangement embodied in
the said Scheme as my/our proxy.

Signed this day of 2017
Signature of Shareholder(s)
Affix Re.1
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Sole/first holder Signature of Second holder Signature of Third holder

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share

capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Further, a Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company

carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other Member.

Please affix Revenue Stamp before putting Signature.

All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initiated.

Proxy need not be a shareholder of the Applicant Company.

In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

ov kW






MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

MAHINDRA TWO WHEELERS LIMITED

Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Telephone No.: +91 2224931441, 24961441, FAX: +91 22 24983696

CIN: U35911MH2008PLC185462

ATTENDANCE SLIP
MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON 13™ JUNE, 2017.

(PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE REGISTRATION COUNTER AT THE MEETING HALL)
Joint Shareholders may obtain additional attendance slip at the venue of the Meeting.

(Name and Address of the Equity Shareholder
(In Block Letters)

Folio No.
DP ID No.
Client ID No.

| Number of shares held : )

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Meeting of the Shareholders of Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited convened pursuant
to the Order dated 5" April, 2017 of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, held at Ground Floor, Gateway Building,
Apollo Bunder, Mumbai - 400 001 on Tuesday, 13* June, 2017 at 9 A.M.

Name(s) of the Shareholder(s)/Proxy(In Block Letters)

Signature(s) of the Shareholder(s)/Proxy
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